
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Jane Creer 

Committee Secretary 
Tuesday, 9 July 2019 at 10.30 am  Direct : 020-8379-4093 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4093 
 E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors :  Chris Bond (Chair), Derek Levy and Jim Steven 
 
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. MERIDIAN WATER, UNIT 4-6B ORBITAL BUSINESS PARK, 5 ARGON 
ROAD, EDMONTON, N18 3BW  (REPORT NO.58)  (Pages 1 - 132) 

 
 Application for a New Premises Licence – Broadwick Venues Ltd, Events 

Application. 
 

4. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20 REPORT NO.58  
 

 
Agenda – Part1 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE: 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
9 July 2019 
 
REPORT OF: 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION: 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT: 
Application for a New Premises Licence – 
Broadwick Venues Ltd, Events Application 
 
PREMISES: 
Meridian Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business 
Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, N18 3BW    
 
WARD: 
Upper Edmonton 
 

 
 

1. LICENSING HISTORY: 
 

1.1 The premises are situated in the area known as Meridian Water and consists 
of warehouses in the Orbital Business Park, referred to as The Drumsheds.  
 

1.2 The Drumsheds and land to the south of The Drumsheds (referred to as the 
IKEA clear site) were granted a premises licence (reference number 
LN/201000086&LN/201900088) on 17 May 2019, following a new premises 
licence application. The applicant was Broadwick Venues Limited, and the 
application was known as the “Festival Application” and the hearing took place 
on 8 May 2019, as the application was subject to representations from 
Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. 

 
1.3 The full licensing agenda, report, decision notice and minutes for the Festival 

Application are available online: 8 May 2019. 
 

1.4 The Council’s Socio-Economic Lead Meridian Water Team has provided an 
overview of the Meridian Water project which is produced in Annex 1. 

 
1.5 Local area maps are produced in Annex 2. The entrance to the land backs on 

to Leeside Road, the north side of the road is in Enfield, the south side is 
Haringey. 

 
 

2. THIS APPLICATION: 
 

2.1 On 15 March 2019 two applications were made by Broadwick Venues Limited, 
for two new Premises Licence as follows: 

 
A. The Festival Application (reference numbers WK/218074578 and 

WK/218074598) for Meridian Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business Park, and 
Land to the south of Units 4-6B, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, 
Edmonton, N18 3BW.  
 

B. The Events Application (reference number WK/218074640) for Meridian 
Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business Park, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon 
Road, Edmonton, N18 3BW.  

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MId=12883&Ver=4


 
 

2.2 This report relates to the ‘Events Application’ only. 
 

2.3 According to Companies House (check carried out on 06/06/2019), the 
Company Directors of Broadwick Venues Limited are listed as: Simon Tracey, 
Simeon Aldred, Ian Buckley, Ian Hanson, Darren Singer and Bradley 
Thompson. 
 

2.4 The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Mr Simeon Aldred.  
 

2.5 The application seeks: 
 

2.5.1 The premises to provide a multi-function event space for a mixture of 
corporate events, product launches, formal dinners, food and beer festivals, 
live music and DJ led music events. 
 

2.5.2 The premises licence to be unlimited. 
 

2.5.3 The maximum capacity will not exceed 9,999. 
 
2.5.4 The application seeks the following licensable activities: 

 

Licensable Activity Timings (daily)* Indoors Outdoors Both 

Plays 08:00 to 06:00   x 

Films 08:00 to 06:00   x 

Indoor Sporting Events 08:00 to 06:00 x   

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments 

08:00 to 06:00   x 

Live music (indoors) 08:00 to 06:00 x   

Live music (outdoors) 09:00 to 22:30  x  

Recorded music (indoors) 08:00 to 06:00 x   

Recorded music (outdoors) 09:00 to 22:30  x  

Performance of dance 08:00 to 06:00   x 

Anything else of a similar 
description 

08:00 to 06:00   x 

Late night refreshment 23:00 to 05:00   x 

Supply of Alcohol 08:00 to 06:00   x 

Hours premises are open to 
the public 

08:00 to 06:00   x 

 
*All activities are subject to non-standard timings as follows: 
That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable activities 
shall be extended by one hour. 
That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between the end 
of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to the start of the 
hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day. 
 

2.6 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 
application. 

 
2.7 A copy of the application and the original plan is attached as Annex 3 and 

Annex 4 respectively.  
 

Page 2



2.8 Broadwick Venues Limited is linked to The Printworks London, Surrey Quays 
Road, London, SE16 7PJ (London Borough of Southwark), and the premises 
licence holder is Xcite Campaign Management Limited. 

 
2.9 The London Borough of Southwark Licensing Team have reported that no 

review action or other enforcement action has been taken against the 
premises licence holders for breaches of licensing or health and safety law.  

 
 
 
3. RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

3.1 All parties making representations against the Festival Application were 
issued an IP reference. For continuity, those same reference numbers have 
been applied again to those making representations against the Events 
Application. Please note that IP8 is not relevant to this application – the 
London Borough of Haringey Licensing Authority objected to the Festival 
Application only. 
 

3.2 Responsible Authorities: 
 

3.2.1 The Metropolitan Police made representation against the application on the 
grounds of prevention of crime and disorder; prevention of public nuisance 
and public safety. This representation will be referred to as IP2 and 
produced in Annex 5. 

 
3.2.2 The London Fire Brigade made representation against the application on 

the grounds of public safety. This representation will be referred to as IP4 
and produced in Annex 6. 

 
 
3.3 Other Persons: Representations have been made, against the application, 

by five parties. The representations will be produced as and referred to as 
follows: 
IP1 – Resident A, Chingford – Annex 7 
IP3 - Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co Ltd – Annex 8 to 9 (this 
includes the representation from the previous application. Appendices in 
relation to Field Day Festival licence application have been excluded) 
IP5 – Resident B, Edmonton – Annex 10 
IP6 - Enfield’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) – Annex 11 

 IP8 – Resident C, Chingford – Annex 12 
 
3.4 The grounds of these representations include the prevention of crime & 

disorder; the prevention of public nuisance, public safety and protection of 
children from harm. 

 
3.5  Additional information is expected from some of the Responsible Authorities and 

Other Persons, and also the Applicant. Broadwick Venues Limited used the 
Festival Licence on Friday 7 and Saturday 8 June 2019, for Field Day Festival. 
Debriefing sessions with the Responsible Authorities and other parties have taken 
place recently which may have some bearing on the representations for the 
Events Application. The outcome is not yet available at the time of publishing this 
report. A Supplementary Report will be circulated and published once received. 
This will also include the list of conditions. 

Page 3



 
4. SITE VISIT 

 
4.1 The SAG Chair recommended that Members of the licensing sub-committee 

carry out a site visit, as it would be beneficial to view the actual site and area, 
due to the unusual layout of the site, event type and also the large capacity 
being sought in the application.   
 

4.2 One site visit took place on Friday 26 April 2019 and the second will take 
place on Monday 8 July 2019, with the Members and Principal Licensing 
Officer only, and in accordance with the Site Visit Protocol.  

 
 
 
5. RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either: 
5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 
5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of April 

2017 (‘Guid’); or 
5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 2015 

(‘Pol’). 
 
 

General Principles: 
5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 
5.3 The licensing objectives are: 
5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
5.3.2 public safety; 
5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 
5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 
 
5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to: 
5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 
5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 
 
 
 

Significant Events: 
 
5.5 The Council recommends that for significant events, a comprehensive risk 

assessment is undertaken by premises licence holders to ensure that matters 
related to the licensing objectives are identified and addressed. [Pol 14.1] 

 
 

Hours: 
 
5.6 The Sub-Committee decides licensed opening hours as part of the 

implementation of the licensing policy statement and is best placed to make 
decisions about appropriate opening hours in their area based on their local 
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities [Guid 10.13]. 

 

Page 4



5.7 Stricter conditions with regard to licensing hours may be required for licensed 
premises situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure 
that disturbance to local residents is avoided. This will particularly apply in 
circumstances where, having regard to the location, size and nature of the 
premises, it is likely that disturbance will be caused to residents in the vicinity 
of the premises by concentrations of people leaving, particularly during 
normal night-time sleeping periods [Pol s.8.4]. 

 
 
 

Cumulative Impact Policy 
 

5.8 The premises is not situated in any of Enfield’s Cumulative Impact Policy  
areas [Pol 9.20]. 
 
 
Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) 

 

5.9 Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) allow the council to work with the 
police to control antisocial behaviour in public places. A PSPO imposes 
prohibitions or restrictions in a public place to stop people committing 
antisocial behaviour. Breaking a PSPO is a criminal offence which can result 
in a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) of £100, or a fine of up to £1,000 if 
prosecuted. Since March 2018, several PSPOs were issued across Enfield, 
including control of alcohol consumption. The order relating to the control of 
alcohol consumption designates the whole borough of Enfield as the area to 
which it applies and states: 
 

1. Person(s) within the designated area shall not consume alcohol, or anything which 
the authorised person reasonably believes to be alcohol, if requested to stop by 
an authorised person. 
 

2. Exemptions shall apply in cases where the consumption of alcohol is on premises 

or public space licensed under the Licensing Act 2003, or where the consumption 

of alcohol is authorised by virtue of Part III of the London Local Authorities Act 

1990 (tables and chairs licences). 

 

3. Person(s) who breach this prohibition shall (with the exemption of the matters 

referred to in above) immediately surrender if requested in accordance with the 

requirements under section 63(2), alcohol, or anything which the authorised 

person reasonably believes to be alcohol, in his/her possession to an authorised 

person and the authorised person is thereafter authorised to dispose of any item 

under section 63(5) of the Act. 

 

 
Advertisement of applications 

 
 

7.10 The Licensing Authority is satisfied that the application was advertised in 
accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 

 

Page 5



Decision: 
 
7.11  As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing 

on the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing 
objective or objectives that have given rise to the specific representation and 
avoid straying into undisputed areas [Guid 9.37].  

 
7.12 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing 

objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the Sub-Committee 
must give appropriate weight to: 

7.12.1 the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
7.12.2 the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties;  
7.12.3 the guidance; and  
7.12.4 its own statement of licensing policy [Guid 9.38]. 
 
7.13 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Sub-Committee 

must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The steps are:  

7.13.1 to grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and such 
conditions as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; 

7.13.2 to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates; 

7.13.3 to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
7.13.4 to reject the application [Act s.18]. 
 
 
 

Background Papers:  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer:  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 6



Annex 1 
 

Meridian Water Project Overview 
 
 
Meridian Water is a 20 year project which will bring 10,000 new homes and 6,000 
new jobs to Enfield across an 85ha site including 55ha of developable land. 
 
As with any scheme of this scale, one of the greatest challenges is to establish an 
approach to development which creates a sense of place from day one and doesn’t 
leave residents and businesses who invest in the early phases of development from 
feeling like they are living or working on a building site for decades. 
 
Part of that process is to bring forward meanwhile uses which animate the scheme 
by creating jobs and visitors onto sites which will almost certainly evolve in terms of 
their final use. These meanwhile uses are also important for a number of other 
reasons: 
 

 They bring visitors to the area which is vital both in terms of raising the profile 
of Meridian Water but also in justifying early investment in transports 
infrastructure – the new Meridian Water station being a notable example in 
this instance.  
 

 They keep sites secure from, for example, fly tipping. Meridian Water has 
suffered significantly from illegal fly tipping which is both expensive to remove 
and creates a negative image of the area for potential investors.  
 

 They create opportunities, including jobs, for residents in surrounding areas, 
an essential part of realising integration between existing and new 
communities.  
 

 They realise income to improve overall viability of the development. 
 
The Council has identified the empty Orbital Business park sheds and IKEA clear 
site as a part of its meanwhile strategy. The site, at approximately 4 ha,  and is one 
of the larger meanwhile opportunities across the development and could provide 
meanwhile uses that could benefit from both the cleared land and a number of large 
sheds with excellent ceiling heights.  
 
The Council’s decision to enter into discussion with Vibration Group was on the basis 
that their proposals meet all of the key aspirations set out above.  
 
Cabinet supported the principle of progressing a proposal with Vibration Group in 
July 2018. In making its decision Cabinet considered that the industrial sheds would 
be converted into a major cultural and music venue in London celebrating music, 
film, art performance and theatre, complemented by music festivals and other 
outdoor content during the summer months – establishing Meridian Water as an 
exciting cultural destination.  It was noted that this would make a major contribution 

Page 7



to the borough’s cultural offer, establish a night time economy offer and significantly 
raise the profile of Meridian Water.  
 
Cabinet also considered the track record of the operator – noting that the provider 
had demonstrated that carefully curated culture attracts footfall to an area, generates 
considerable PR and changes the perception of an area, all of which are key 
aspirations for Meridian Water.  
 
The initial Field Day Festival, the first of what we anticipate being many events, was 
successful with the SAG feeding back that Field day had a compliant and pleasant 
crowd with a considerably low number of people using welfare facilities. The event 
went well and raised the profile of the Meridian Water with 25,000 people in 
attendance and the new transport infrastructure coped well with the train station 
being well used.  
 
Simon Gardner  
Socio- Economic Lead Meridian Water Team  
 

Page 8



Annex 2 
Local Area Maps 

Key for all three maps: 

A – Broadwick Ltd 

B – Tottenham Hotspurs, White Hart Lane Stadium 

C – Meridian Water new station (overground) 

D – Tottenham Hale station (overground and underground) 

Map 1: 

 A

B

C

P
age 9



Map 2: 
A

B

D

P
age 10



Map 3: 

A

B

C

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Enfreld

Application for a premises licence to be granted
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE REAI} THE FOLLOWINGINSTRUCTIONS FIRST

lefore completing this forrn please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing this
form by hand please write legibty in block capitats. In all cases ensure that your aoswers are inside the
boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if neressary,

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/we --- "Þr-qs-dy!ç-\-Y-e¡9p¡_!igl94 __:__--__-___--_-_---_-__-____
(Insert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section t7 of the LicensÍng Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making thts apptication to you as the relevant licensing
authorþ in accordancc with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part t - Premises Details

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises Not rated

Paftz - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applyrng for a premiset tt"*""fr*e 
ück as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * n please comFlete section (A)

b) aperson otherthan anindividual *

i. as a limited compâny

ii. as apartnership

iii. as an unincorporated association or

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation)

c) arecognised club

d) acharity

X please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

n please comFlete section (B)

. please complete section (B)

I

Postal address ofpremises or, ifnone, ordnance survey map reference or description

Meridian Water
Units 4, 5,6,6a&b
Orbital Business Park
5 Argon Road
Edmonton

Post town I-ondsn Postcode N18 3BW

Page 13



Ë)

Ð

s)

the proprietor of an educational est¿blishment

a health service body

a perscn who ie rcgistered ur¡drr Fart 2 r:f the Care
Sta¡dards,Act 20t0 (cl4) in respect ofaa independent
hospítal in Wales

gâ) eFcrsûn who is registered under Chapter ? of Part I of il please ccmplete section (B)
fle Health snd Social Care Act 2û08 {within the
meaning of that Fart) in an indçentlent hospital in
England

h) The chief officer of pclice of a pclice farce in Englancl n please complete section {B}
antl Vy'ales

* If ycu are applying as epersün described in {*} or (b) please confirm:

Flease tick yes

I am carrying rrn or proposing tû *ârry on a busir¡ess whiclr ûrvolves the use of tåre premises far
licensablc acfivities; sr
I ar* making the ap¡:lication pursuant ta a

c{åfi¡tÐry {i¡nction or

a function discharged by virtue of H.er lVfajesty's prerogative

(,4") INDIVffiUAã, APPÍ,ICA¡ÌT$ (fill in as applicable)

tl please complete secfion {B}

il please complete section (Þ)

Ü please ei:mplet€ secfiûn {B)

E

n
n

MîtrM¡silMissilMsü ûther Title {for
*xample, Rev)

$urnnr¡¡e First names

I am 18 years old or over n Please tick yes

Current postal address if
difFerent from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

2

Page 14



MI tr MTS Míss Msn Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname First names

Iam lSyearsoldorover n Please fick yes

Curent postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDMDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

(B) OTHERAPPLTCÂrYTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in futl. \ilhere appropriate please give any
registered number. fn the case of a parhershiF or other joint vetrture (other than a body corporate),
please give the name and sddress ofeach party concerned.

Name
Broadwick Ve,nues Limited

Address
30 Leicester Square
London
WC2HTLA

Registered number (where applicable)
10884920

Description
Company

of applicant (for example, partnership, rompany, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

J

Page 15



Pa;rt 3 Operating Schedule

'When do you want the premises licsnce to start?

If you wish the lice,nce to be valid only for a limited period, when do you
want it to end?

DD YYTY

DD MM

Please give a genoral description of the premises þlease read gui<tance note 1)

Multi-function event space for a mixture of corporate events, produot launches, formal dinners, food and
beer festivals, live music and DJ led music events.

Temporary stages, bars, toilefs and seating to be in situe on an event by event basis. A detailed plan of each
event will be provided to the responsible authorites.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time,
please state the number expected to attend.

9,999

Wh¿t licensable activities do you intend to carÐ¡ on from fhe premises?

(Please see sections I and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment Please tick any that
apply

a) plays (if tickine yes, filI in box A) X
b) films (if tioking ycs, hll in box B) X
c) indoor sporting cvents (if ticking yes, fill in box C) E
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) X
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) X

Ð recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) E

C) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in boxG) X
r.\ anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)h) 

tiäi"tiîev"r, nil in box Fr) : '-'t A

4

Page 16



Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Sunulv of alcohol (if ticking yes, frll in box J)

In all cases complete boxes tri L and M

A

X

E

Plays
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

WiIl tbe performance of a çIsv take..rlace indoors
or outdoors or both:Îlease tick (please read
guidance note 2)

Indoors tr

Outdoors tr
Day Start Finish Both E
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please Jdve further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:0û 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal variatio+s for nerforPins rlayq (please read guidance
note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non standard timisgs. \PheTe l:plr intçn$".to qçe the nrqpises for,the
rerformsnce of rlal's at d¡fferent t¡mes to those listed Ín the column on
the left rlpase list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted betweeh
the end ofthe hours permifted for licensable activities on New year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

5

Page 17



B
Fílms
St¿ndard days and timings

þlease read guidance note
6)

'lVjll the exhibition of fìIms take,nlace lndoors or
gutdoor$ qr bpth - ¡¡leq¡e tick þlease read guidance
note 2)

Indoors tr

Outdoors tr
Day Start Finish Both

Mon 08:00 06:00 Please give fu4h. rr detaits here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal v¿riations for the exhibition of fÌlms þlease read
guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non standard timinss. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
e_xhibition of fìIms af different times to those liste4 in fhp colqpn on the
left please 4st þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summeltime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permifted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

6

Page 18



C
Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
þlease read guid¡nce note
6)

Please aive further details þlease read guidance note 3)

Day Start Finish

Mon 08:00 06:00

Tire 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal variations for indoor snortine events (please read
guidance note 4)

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thur 08:00 06:00 Non st¿ndard timings. Where vou intend to use the nremíses for indoor
spo{SnE eve""+ts at di$çr-e-n! tir-n".ps..fpjhosç listed in*thg column ón the lef!
please list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime tbe terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours pemritted for licensable activities on New Year,s Eve to
the start ofthe hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Day.

Fri 08:00 06:û0

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

WiIl the boxinr or wrestlinq entertainment take
pl¡çe indo"grs or outdools or botå - rl-ease tick
þlease read guidance note 2)

lndoors ü

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please sive further deta¡ls here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal variations for boxins or wrestling entert¡inment
þlease read guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 lYon stan*.*rd tiqlingq. W[ere rog i*fend tq use the nremises for boxins

Page 19



or wrestlinq entertainment at diffcrent timei to those listed in the column
qn the left rþêse".li$! (please read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal bour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the st¿rt of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

E
Live music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

WiIl tbe uerform¡nce of live music take ulace
indoors or outdoors or both - nlease tick þlease
read guidance note 2)

Times in bold are for outdoors.

Indoors

Outdoors tr
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:3t

Tue 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal varistÍons for tbe nerfo{Ugance of live music þlease
read guidance note 4)

09:00 2223t

Thur 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Fri 08:û0 06:00 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
pprfprpance of live mus4 at Êifferent ti$gF'.to thoqe listed.in the cplumn
qn the left. please list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all lieensable
activities shall be extended by one hour

ïhat on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day

09:00 22ßA

Sat 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

Sun 08:00 06:00

09:00 22ßA

I

Page 20



F
Recorded music
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Will fhgdavíüs of recofded music take placq
indoorp,g-r outdoors or both - ¡¡lease tick þlease
read guidance note 2)

Times in bold a¡e for outdoors.

Indoors tr

Outdoors D
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please pive further details hgre þlease read guidance note 3)

09:00 22:30

Tue 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Wed 08:00 06:00 State *ny seasonrl variations for the ulavins of recorded musÍc þlease
read guidance note 4)

09:00 2223O

Thur 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the oremises for the
plavins of reçor4e,Èmusic af,di$Rrent times to those listçd in úhcolumn
on the left" nlease list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the st¿rt of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve lícensable activities shall also be permified between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year,s Day

09:00 22ßA

Sat 08:00 06:00

09:00 22ßA

Sun 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

G
Perform¿nces of dance
Süandard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

WÍll t4e$erfiormsnce of dance tdfg nlace indoors
qr outdoors or both - olease tick þlease read
guidance note 2)

I¡rdoors n
Outdoors n

Day Start Finish Both E
Mon 08:00 06:00 Flçesq {¡!ve fu4her details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 0ó:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 St4te aEv seasonal variations for the rerformance ofdance (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

9

Page 21



Fri

H

08:00 06:00 Non standard timines. Where vau intend to use the oremises for the
perfor+flnce qf dance at diffpJent"tiEpp to those listed in the column on
the left. nlease list (please read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the tcrminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted betwcen
the end of the hours permitte.d for licensable activities onNew Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:0û

Sun 08:00 06:00

Änything of a similar
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

Day Start Finish lVill this enfe,#4,nment take olaçgi+dqqrs or
outdoors or both - please tick þlease read guidance
note 2)

Indocrs tr
Mon 08:00 06:00 Outdoors n

Both E
Tue 08:0û 06:00 tlease sive further deta¡Is here þlease read guidance note 3)

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thur 08:00 06:00 State anv se¡sonal variations for entertainment of a similar descrintion to
th¡t falling yithin le). lCI or lgl (please read guidance note 4)

Fri 08:00 06:00

Sat 08:00
06:00

Nogstandard timings. Whefe, r,.oR.intend to Eis-e the nremises fqr thJg

entertainment of ¡ similar descrirtion to that fallinc w¡tbin leì. {f) or {s}
at different times to those listed in the column on the left ulerse list
þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended bv one hour.

Th¿t on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted betwee,n
the end of the hous permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the for licensable activities onNew Year's Day.

Sun 08:00
06:00

1û

Page 22



I
Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Will the provision of l¡te night refreshment take
place indoors or outdoors or both - please tick
þlease read guidance note 2)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both E
Mon 23:00 05:00 Please give further details here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 23:00 05:00

Wed n:a0 05:00 Ttlte ¡nv sq¿sonal va"riations for the nrovision of late nisht refreshment
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur 23:00 05:00

Fri 23:O0 05:00 l.{on sßqp4*rd"S,miFsr. þbçre vou intend to use the premises, for thq
provision of late niqht refreshment at diffcrent tiqes. to those listed in
the,solumn on the left nlease list (please read guidance note 5)

That at tfre start of British summertime the terrninal hour for all licensable
activities shall be exte¡rded by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Eve to
the start of thq 4oì¡rs permitted for licensable activities on New year's Day.

Sat 23:00 05:00

Sun 23:00 05:00

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Wiü thç sunplv of alçohol be for consumstion -
plçpse tipF (please read guidance note 7)

On the
premises

Offthe
premises

Day Sta¡t Finish Both E
Mon 08:00 06:00 State any se¡sonal v¿riations for the supplv ofalcohol (please read

guidance note 4)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thur 08:00 06:00 NoR standaTd fiminfr$* Where r,ou inte,sd to use the premÍsesjor the
supnlv of alcohol at different times to those li¡ted in the column on the
IefL élease list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri 08:00 06:00

1i

Page 23



Thatat the sart ofBritish Summcrtime the terrrinal hour for all licensable
activities shall be exte,nded by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours pemiitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the staf of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06;00

Name
SimeonAldred

Date of Birth   

Address

Postcode

Personal licence number (if known) 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) B¡oxtowe Borough Council

State the name and det¡ils of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated

Premi5ss suPervisor:

K
Please highlight any adult entert¡Ínment or services, activities, other entert¡inment or matfe¡s
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to corcern in respect of children þlease read
guidance note 8).

N/A

12

Page 24



L
Hours premises åre open
to the publtc
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

State anv seasonal -y$fia{png þlease read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon 08:00 06:00

Tire 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00

Non qt$ndaq$.fi*niÐ¡s. Where vou intend the sq_e,,{.rises to be oFen to t}Ê
¡¡ublic at different times from those listed in the column on the left.,please
þ! þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the sørt of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve liccnsable aotivities shall also be permitted between
the end of the'hours perrnitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day,

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00

Sat 08:00 06:û0

Sun 08:00 06:00

i

¡
i

13

Page 25



M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

General - aII four d and re,ad note

l. For all eve,nts, the premise licence holder shall have in place documentation for the venue that will be
reviewed prior to each event and updated and amended if required. These documents will detail action
to be taken by st¿fr will be available for inspection by the licensing authority and will include:

- Venue Operational Plan;

Traffic Management Plan;

Security/Crowd Management Plan;

- Noise Management Plan;

Risk Assessment(s);

- Drugs Policy;

- Medical Mañagement Plan;

- Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy

- Any other associated documentation.

- A plan showing these temporary non-fixed structures will be created and circulated as
part ofthe operational plan for each event.

The of srime and disorder

2. That all staffwill be given üaining in relation to the Licensing Act 2003 and the following specific
areas; Licensing Act 2003 objectives and aì¡r'areness, management systems and processes to enforce the
premises licence conditions, Challenge 25 and the responsible retail of alcohol, waming and eviôtion
(guidelines and procedures), conflict management and maintaining all required records and registers.

3. Th¿t the maximum capacity of the premises is 9,999 persons for all DJ / music led nights and 9,999
patrons for all day time events and exhibitions.

4. That clearly legible sþage shall be prominently displayed where it can easily be seen and read by
customers at all exits / entranccs at the premises and in all exte,mal areas of the premises requesting to
the effect tÍat customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderþ manner with respect for local
residents.

5. That a regist€r will be maintained at the main entrance to the premises showing the names, addresses
and up to date contact details including mobile phone contact numbers for the Licensee and otler
members of the management team who are on duty

6. That no alcohol will be brought in to the premises by any customeß at any time.

7. That any event held at the premises will be risk assessed and a suitable and sufficient number of male
and female door supervisors will be employed at the premises in accordance with the risk assessment. A
search policy will be implemented in line with the risk assessment.

offthe premises where the8 The Venue Manager will only the sale of alcohol for

t4

Page 26



alcohol is a specialist product, e.g. wine sold as part of a food and drink festivat or a gift in part of a
corporate event. For events which are promotional ev.ents, sealed bottles of alcohol may be part of a gift
for people attending the event and customers will be allowed to leave with those sealed containers. This
will be enforced by security confiscating open vessels on exit points.

9. The crowd management plan dealing with the dispersal and egress of guests will be in operation for
every event held at the premise, details of this can be found in the operational plan.

l0.That promotional literature and tickets will cont¿in information regarding transport options and,shall
request that persons leave the area quietly.

11. That SIA securify staffand/or stewards to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons where neccssary
to leave the site quietly

12. That any substantial queues forrned within and outside the premises shall be supervised by event
staffwhere appropriate. Such supervision shall be aimed at preventing disorder and discouraging anti-
social behaviour.

13. All staffwill receive licensing training in relation to the sale of alcohol, times and conditions of the
premise prior to the premises opening. Training records will be kept on the premises.

14. That a comprehensive incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to
record details of any of the following occurences at the premises:

Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

Violence

Calls to the police or fire brigade

Abuse of staffand / or customers

Ejections of people from the premises

Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

Reñrsed sales of alcohol

- Any malfi¡nction in respect of the CCTV system

- Any other relevant incidents

i5. The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of
each inciden! the printed and signed name of the psrson reporting the incident and any action taken in
respect ofthe incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible
at the ptemises at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be
made available to officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request.

16. That a written record is kept of all staff authorised to sell alcohol; this staffrecord is to contain the
full name, home address, date of birth and national insurance number of each person so authorised. The
staffrecord is to be kept on the licensed premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing
Authority, Trading Standards or the Police as soon as reasonably practicable.

L:l, That SIA security staff and/or stewards to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons where necessary
to leave the site quietþ.

18. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following criteria:

15

Page 27



- Cameras must be sited to observe customer entrance and exit doors both inside and outside, the
bars and floor areas.

- Where practicat be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed.

- Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image.

Provide good quality images during opening times.

- Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet.

Have a monitor to review images ând recorded picture quatity.

- Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retenfion.

- Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation.

- Digital images must be kept for 3l days.

- The police and authorised officers of the council will have access to iinages upon request

- The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD,ÐVD writer so that the police or
authorised officers of the council can make an evidential copy of the data wheil they require.

' All camor¿Ìs shall record constantly during all hours the premises are open to the public or to a
se€tion of the public permitted access for corporate or private events.

- There must be a member of staffon site who can operate the CCTV when requested

19. That all information conúained in the tansport ståtement submitted to Enfield Council on
application for this licence will be implemented by the premises licence holder. A copy of the transport
statement shall be ke,pt at the premises and be made available to council or police officers on request.

20. For any event that runs past an operational time of 4:0ûam a last entry policy witl be in place
stopping guests from entering the venue past l:00am.

21 . Licensable activities such as the sale of alcohol will cease one hour prior to the venue closing for
events with a run-time to 6:00am, allowing a one-hour wind down unless agreed in advance with the
responsible authorities.

16

Page 28



Public

The of nutsance

22.That for each event an event overview shall be prepared and be made available for inspection by the
responsi ble authorities.

23' Thatunless otherwise agreed in writing with the Licensing Authority, details of any proposed use
and storage of lasers, special effects, fireworks or pyrotechnics shall be reflected in the Venue
Operational Plan

24.Thata medical plan shall be devised in respect of the premises and a copy of the medical plan shall
be available / be,accessible at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. The medical
plan shall be made immediately available to council or police officers on request. First aid cover and
facilities appropriate to any event must be provided in accordance with the medical plan.

25. That toilet facilities will be appropriately provided in accordance with each Venue Operational plan,
including the provision of external toilets if and when requirecl.

26.T'bat a comprehensive Noise Management Plan shall be devised and reflected in the Venue
Operation Plan in respect of the premises and a copy of the Noise Management Plan shall be accessible
at the premises at all times that the pronises are in operation. The Noise Management Plan shall be
made immediately available to council or police ofñcers on request. That the licensee will ensure that
the premises Noise Management Plan is adhered to at all times.

27 . That all relevant staffworking at the premises shall be trained in the content of the Noise
Management Plan and be aware of their responsibilities and duties under it. Records of relevant training
shall be kept with the lrloise Management Plan.

28. That the Noise Management Plan shall be reviewed whenever there is a signiñcant change at the
premises. For example, a significant change could includê a new licensee, change to premises layout, a
refit, a change to the type or style of licensed entertainment etc.

29.\\at a telephone number and/or email address should be made available on relevani websites for
any noise complaints. Any noise complaints should be logged and investigated with written records of
the det¿ils available to view by the Local Authority. Should any noise complaints be received, and if
noise levels are above those specified in the licence conditions, action should be taken to reduce the
levels at the noise source.

30.That in the event of an emergency, music will cease and safety anriouncements will be relayed to
attendees to a suitable non-powered back-up system will be in place.

3 l.That patrons of the premises shall be provided with the details of preferred mini cat companies.

32.That permitted sound levels shall be specified in the contract conditions with hirers of the premises

to ensure sound levels are maintained within the limits in order to reduce the risk of disturbance.

Furthel, during a function in the premises, sample noise measurements shall be made by a designated

person with an approved sound level meter to ensure that the levels are not being breached. Immediate

action will be taken to reduce levels if this should arise.

T7

Page 29



o

a

¡

o

¡
.o

a

The ofchildren from herm

Checklist:

Please tÍck to indicate tgreement

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

I have enclosed the plan of the premises.

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable.

I have ericlosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be desigrrated premisds
supervisor, if applicable.

I understand that I must now advertise my application.

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.

[Applicable to all individual applicants, iucluding t]ose in a partnership which is not a limited
liability partnership, but not companies or limited liabilþ partnershipsl I have included
documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15).

IT IS AI\[ OFFENCE, UIIDER SECTTON 158 OF THE LTCENSTNG ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
FALSE STÁ.TEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION TVITIT TITIS APPLICATION. THCISE WHO
MATü] A IIAL$E STATEMENT MAT BE LIABÍ,E OÏ ÑUMMÄRY CONVICTION TO A F'INE OF'
A¡IY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OF.f'ENCE UNI}ER SECTION 248 OF THE IMMIGR^A,TION Á.CT 197T FOR A PERSON
TO IVORr(WHENTTIEY KNOW, OR HÄ\¡E REÀSONÄBLE CAUSE TO BELIEYE, TrrAT TrrEy
Á,RE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REÁSON OF TIIEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS.
TIIOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT }VITIIOUT LEAVE 9R }YEO IS SU&IECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT }VILL BE LIABLE TO A CIWL PENALTY UNDER
SECTION 15 OF TIIE IMMTGRATION, ASYLT]M AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND
PrrRsuANT TO SECTTON 21 OF THE SÄME ACT, \ilrI-I. BE COMMITTING ÂN OFFENCE
WIIERE THEY DO SO IN Tlrs'. KNOWLEDGE, OR MTH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE,
THAT TIIE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFTED.

E
e
a

X
a

E

33. That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least l8 years old. Full details
will be contained in the youth and vulnelable person policy.

34. Clearly legible signs shall be prominently displayed stating to the effect that a challenge2lpolicy is
in operation at ttre premises, that customers may be asked to provide proof of age and stating what the
acceptable forms of proof of age are.

35. That suitable records are kept ofall refused sales ofage resfricted products.

36. The operational procedure of all bars will adhere to the Venue Operational Plan

37. The Youth and Vulnerable persons policy agreed with the responsible authorities will be in
operation at all events.

18

Page 30



Part 4 - Signafures þlease read guidance note l0)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note I t). If
signing on behalfofthe applicant, please state in what capacity.

Forjoint appllcations, signature of2'd appticant or 2od applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent
þlease read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applic*nÇ please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Declaration

a iApplicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which
is not a limited liability partrrershipl I understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have t}re entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK þlease read guidance note 15)
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is nota

subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work relating to a
licesable activity) and I seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if aþropriate note 15)

Signature Jæol s t^rlÅ^
Date / S t.i" ¡llt*rt ?$ Ic.,
Capacity Woods Whur 2014 Limited - Solicitors for the Applicært

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)
Paddy Whur
Woods Whu¡ 2014 Limited
Devonshire House
38 York Place

Post town Iæeds Pcstcode LSI 2ED
Telephone number (if any) 0ll3 234 3t55
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail addrcss (optional)

carole@woodswhur. co.uk

19

Page 31



l

I

Page 32



  Annex 4 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



METROPOLITAN 

POLICE 

Territorial Policin.a 

Licensing Officers, 

TOTAL POLICING 

Environment & Operational Services 

Place Directorate 

Enfield Council 

Silver Street 

Enfield 

EN13XY 

C/0 Licensing office 

Metropolitan Police Service 

North Area BCU 

Edmonton Police Station 

462 Fore Street 

London N9 0PW 

E-mail:

www.met.police.uk 

11 th April 20 19 

Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a and b, 5 Argon Road, 

London N18 38W 

"Events Application" 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

I write with regards to the above application, which is an application for a new 

premises licence in accordance the Licensing Act 2003. 

The Metropolitan Police hereby make objection to the application on the 

grounds that should it be granted in its current form it is likely to undermine the 

Annex 5
Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



IP4 Representation Events – London Fire Brigade 

Premises:    Drum Sheds / Meridian Water,  Units 4, 5, 6 & 9 Orbital 
Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BY 

The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority 
for London. The Commissioner is responsible for enforcing the Regulatory Reform 
(Fire Safety) Order 2005 (The Order) in London.  

With reference to the application dated 15/03/2019,  as shown on the plan provided, 
the application has been examined and the Commissioner will make a 
representation to the Licensing Authority. 

The Applicant has been informed, by copy of this letter, of this representation. 

The items that are of concern to this authority are detailed below: 

• The Commissioner has not received all of the information required and has
not therefore been able to form a judgement as to whether the public
safety objective of the Licensing Act has been adequately addressed.

• The applicant has not shown that the number of people to be
accommodated can be safely evacuated in an emergency.

The representation may be withdrawn if all of the matters detailed above  are 
addressed to the satisfaction of the Commissioner. The Commissioner must be 
advised of the completion of the work at least 5 working days before the committee 
hearing date, so that an inspection can be arranged.  

If you are dissatisfied in any way with the response given, please send an email to 
FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk, quoting our reference 32/205151/DL. 

Regards 
London Fire Brigade 
Fire Safety Regulation Admin 
169 Union Street 
London  
SE1 0LL 
T: Helpdesk 020 8555 1200 x89170 
E: FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk 

Annex 6Page 41

mailto:FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk
mailto:FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

GN_71  Page 1 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

 

  

 

FIRE SAFETY GUIDANCE NOTE Number: 

GN71 
Guide to Applicants for Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority for London. The 

Commissioner is responsible for enforcing the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (The Order) 

in London.  

 

This Guidance Note provides advice on the information and standards required by the Commissoner 

from applicants applying for licences under the Licensing Act 2003.  

 

This Note is one of a series produced by the Commissioner to provide advice on various aspects of fire 

safety. If you require any further guidance on the advice given or require advice on another topic 

please visit your local Fire Safety Office, telephone 020 8555 1200 and ask for the nearest Fire Safety 

Office, or visit our web site at http://www.london-fire.gov.uk  

 

CONTENTS: 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 2 

2 ROLE OF THE FIRE AUTHORITY 2 

3 THE FIRE SAFETY CONTENT OF YOUR OPERATING SCHEDULE 3 

4 SAFE CAPACITY 3 

5 PERMITTED CAPACITY RECOMMENDATION 3 

6 SCALED PLANS OF YOUR PREMISES 3 

7 UNDERPINNING STANDARDS 4 

8 PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 5 

9 LARGE TEMPORARY EVENTS 5 

10 OUR RISK BASED INSPECTION & ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMME 5 

11 RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION IN LICENSED BUILDINGS 5 

12 OTHER LEGISLATION 6 

13 BIBLIOGRAPHY 6 

Page 43

http://www.london-fire.gov.uk/


 

GN_71  Page 2 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This guidance is intended for use by applicants for: 

 New premises licences 

 Variations to existing premises licences 

 New Club premises certificates 

 Variations to existing club premises certificates 

 Provisional statements 

2 ROLE OF THE FIRE AUTHORITY 

2.1 Fire Authorities are designated as a ‘Responsible Authority’ under the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act). 
The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner)  is the Fire Authority for all 32 London Boroughs 
and the City of London. The Act requires that applications for the above licences are copied to the Fire 
Authority. The aim of this consultation is to promote public safety. The Act has four statutory 
objectives:  

 The prevention of crime and disorder. 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 

2.2 The Act was implemented whilst the Fire Precautions Act 1971 (FPA) was the primary piece of fire 
safety legislation. The FPA was repealed through the introduction of the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005 (the Order),  resulting in a number of changes to the Act.  The principal change 
being that whilst fire authorities are a Responsible Authority, they should use their own enforcement 
powers through the Order where possible, rather than the Act. This does not negate the requirement 
under the Act for an individual or organisation to send applications for consultation to  the Fire 
Authority. You are reminded that the Act embodies a self-regulatory approach with licencees taking 
control of the risks that they create. 

2.3 From existing premises information and that provided, we will make an assessment of the fire safety 
provisions in relation to the public safety objective of the Act. Where we believe that this objective is 
not being adequately met and we cannot take action under the Order, we may make a representation 
about this to the Licensing Authority. 

2.4 You are required to send the Commissioner: 

 A copy of the Application Form including the Operating Schedule. 

 Scaled plans of the premises (see below for more information). 

 A copy of the Fire Risk Assessment (if completed). 

2.5 In processing your submission we will: 

 Check that we have sufficient information to make an assessment (Note: where insufficient or 
late information is supplied we may make a representation to the Licensing Authority) . 

 Carry out a fire safety assessment of the application in relation to the licensing objectives.  

 Where necessary, visit your premises to gather more information or carry out a fire safety audit 

 Advise you and the licensing authority in writing whether we intend to make a representation or 
not. 

 

Page 44



 

GN_71  Page 3 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

 Where we are making a representation we will inform you which issues are causing us concern. 

 Provide advice and guidance in order to avoid unnecessary hearings.  

3 THE FIRE SAFETY CONTENT OF YOUR OPERATING SCHEDULE 

3.1 As part of your ‘steps to promote the public safety objective’ you should consider the fire safety 
arrangements for your premises. This will mean carrying out a thorough fire safety risk assessment. (For 
further information on how to carry out a fire risk assessment see our Guidance Note 66 or refer to 
www.gov.uk). The Order requires the responsible person to carry out a fire risk assessment and act 
upon the significant findings to reduce the risks from fire. Where a fire risk assessment already exists it 
should be reviewed to ensure that it takes account of any changes that you propose to make and also 
to ensure that it makes adequate provision for the safety of all the people who may be at the premises.  
If you haven’t sent us a copy of your fire risk assessment with the application, we may ask to see your 
fire risk assessment and want to discuss with you any significant findings. 

4 SAFE CAPACITY 

4.1 Your fire risk assessment should include an evaluation of the means of escape and the number of 
people that can safely be accommodated at the premises. In some premises this evaluation may show 
that the exits are sufficient for a greater number of people than could be present. Where a ‘safe 
capacity’ is necessary you should include this with your submission. Safe capacities are best expressed 
in clear and simple terms e.g. “The maximum capacity of the premises at any one time will be restricted 
in respect of the ground floor to 300 persons and in respect of the first floor to 100 persons.” Capacity 
should normally be inclusive with respect to staff and performers. 

4.2 Note: In meeting the four statutory  objectives of the Act (Paragraph 2.1), the capacity of the premises 
for licensed purposes may be less than the actual capacity of the premises allowed by a fire safety fire 
risk assessment. 

5 PERMITTED CAPACITY RECOMMENDATION 

5.1 Section 177 of the Act, which now only applies to performances of dance, and Section 177(a ) which 
applies to music, provides for the suspension of some licensing conditions in some smaller premises 
that have a ‘permitted capacity’ of not more than 500 persons. The Act states that the fire authority 
must be asked to make a recommendation on the capacity. If you wish the Commissioner  to 
recommend a ‘permitted capacity’ you should first conduct a risk assessment and assess the capacity of 
your premises using an appropriate standard (see section below on underpinning standards). You 
should then submit your request together with scaled plans as detailed below. We will consider your 
request and respond accordingly. 

5.2 Applicants should be aware of various changes to the original Licensing Act 2003 through a variety of 
other Acts of Parliament and the guidance issued under the Act (Section 182 Guidance). 

6 SCALED PLANS OF YOUR PREMISES  

6.1 NB: Scale required is 1:100 (i.e. 1 centimetre = 1 metre) 

6.2 Regulations made under the Act detail the following information that should be included on the scaled 
plans that must be submitted with your application: 

(a) The extent of the boundary of the building and any external and internal walls, and if different, 
the perimeter of the premises. 

(b) The location of points of access to and egress from the premises. 

(c) If different from (b) the location of escape routes from the premises. 

Page 45

https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments


 

GN_71  Page 4 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

(d) Where the premises are used for more than one existing licensable activity, the area within the 
premises used for each activity.  

(e) Fixed structures (including furniture) or similar objects temporarily in a fixed location (but not 
furniture) which may impact on the ability of individuals to use exit or escape routes without 
impediment. 

(f) The location and height of any stage or raised area. 

(g) The location of any steps, stairs, elevators, or lifts. 

(h) The location of public conveniences. 

(i) The location and type of any fire safety equipment, including marine safety equipment. 

(j) The location of any kitchen. 

6.3 At the back of this guidance note (appendix B) there is a specimen plan, that shows how this 
information may be recorded. This plan uses well recognised, standard symbols and a key to these 
symbols is attached (appendix A) for your convenience. For example, the plan shows safety equipment 
such as fire extinguishers, fire alarm call points and automatic fire detectors, using these symbols.  

6.4 The plan also shows some additional information:  

(i) The intended use of each room. 

(ii) The size of the licensed area(s) (in square metres). 

(iii) Walls, doors (including direction of opening), partitions and glazing which are fire resisting for 
not less than 30 minutes. 

(iv) All exit routes, showing clear exit widths of doors, passageways, staircases and final exits. 

6.5 Having all of your fire safety information available on one plan may assist you with your emergency 
planning and staff training. It will also enable the fire authority to assess your fire precautionary 
measures with the minimum of delay. 

7 UNDERPINNING STANDARDS 

7.1 Although each premises will be assessed on an individual basis we will use the following published 
guidance to provide underpinning standards: 

Communities & Local Government Publications. These are available to download free of charge from: 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/fire  

 Entry Level Guide: ‘A short guide to making your premises safe from fire’ 

 Fire Safety in Small and medium places of assembly 

 Fire Safety in Large places of assembly 

 Fire Safety in Theatres and cinemas 

 Fire Safety in Open air events and venues 

 Fire Safety Risk Assessment - Means of Escape for Disabled People 

 
Other documents: 

 The Building Regulations 2000 - Approved Document B (available to download free of charge 
from: 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/partb/bcapprove
ddocumentsb/ 

Page 46

http://www.communities.gov.uk/fire
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/partb/bcapproveddocumentsb/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/partb/bcapproveddocumentsb/


 

GN_71  Page 5 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

 Annex E & F of “Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003” (available to 
download free of charge from: 
http://www.culture.gov.uk/reference_library/publications/3667.aspx 

 Appropriate British & European Standards  e.g. BS 5839 and BS EN3 

7.2 Each area requiring the provision of emergency lighting to assist escape in case of normal lighting 
failure, should be indicated on the plan using the appropriate symbols.  Lighting design and installation 
should normally conform to BS 5266, and be installed by a competent person, preferably with third 
party accreditation. 

7.3 Fire alarm systems should normally conform to the current edition of BS 5839, with consideration made 
for prevention of false alarms, and appropriate provision based on your fire risk assessment and the 
nature of the entertainment, e.g. visual indicators, phased systems and any links to disable sound 
systems.  Installation should be made by a competent person, preferably with third party accreditation. 

7.4 Fire-fighting equipment provided should normally conform to BSEN 3 or equivalent relevant standards. 
(Fire Safety Guidance Note 8: Hand held portable fire-fighting equipment, gives further guidance). 

7.5 All necessary fire related signs and notices should normally conform to the Health and Safety (Safety 
Signs & Signals) Regulations 1996 or BS 5499. 

8 PEOPLE with disabilities 

8.1 The requirement to comply with access and means of escape for persons with disabilities will normally 
be considered to have been addressed where the recommendations/guidance in Approved Document 
M of the Building Regulation 88300 or BS 9999 have been satisfied. The fire risk assessment should 
demonstrate suitable and sufficient arrangements for the safety of persons with disabilities in the event 
of a fire emergency. The Equality Act 2010, requires reasonable physical adjustments to physical 
features that make it unreasonably difficult for persons with disabilities to use a service. 

9 LARGE TEMPORARY EVENTS   

9.1 These may involve a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations within 
the premises or a series of connected premises licences that in combination represent a single event. 
We strongly advise event organisers to set up a co-ordinating committee (Safety Advisory Group) and 
commence discussion with the Licensing and other Responsible Authorities at the earliest opportunity. 
The Commissioner can also provide pre-application fire safety advice to event organisers. 

10 OUR RISK BASED INSPECTION & ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMME 

10.1 Our intention is to focus our inspection and enforcement activities where the risks to people are 
greatest. To achieve this we will: 

 Risk grade individual premises to identify higher and lower risks 

 Inspect higher risk premises more frequently 

 Target enforcement activity at known higher risk premises 

 Use enforcement action under fire safety laws in parallel with action under the Licensing Act 

 Where permitted we will share information on problem premises with other authorities 

11 RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION IN LICENSED BUILDINGS 

11.1 Whilst the new licensing regime relates only to the areas in your premises that are used for licensable 
activities, in some cases the greatest risk to life will be found in associated sleeping accommodation. 
You should take the opportunity to reassess these risks and consider: 

Page 47

http://www.culture.gov.uk/reference_library/publications/3667.aspx


 

GN_71  Page 6 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

 Where could a fire start and how will it effect anyone sleeping in the premises? 

 How will they be alerted to a fire? Would automatic fire detection reduce the risks? 

 How will they make their escape once alerted? Is there adequate protection and emergency 
escape lighting  to the means of escape routes? 

11.2 The exact legal position is dependant upon the nature of the risks and also the relationship between the 
responsible person and the people using the sleeping accommodation. Where the Commsioner’s 
officers visit premises they will assess the risks to everyone and take any appropriate action including: 

 Enforcement action under fire safety laws that we enforce. 

 Passing information to other authorities that enforce relevant legislation i.e. Housing Act. 

12 OTHER LEGISLATION 

12.1 Applicants are reminded of the need to consult with a Building Control Authority/Agency where it is 
proposed to alter the structural layout or change the use of premises. 

12.2 The Responsible Person  must comply with the requirements of the Order when preparing their fire risk 
assessment.  Further guidance relating to fire precautions in licensed premises can be obtained by 
referral to the relevant organisations detailed in the bibliography below: 

13 Bibliography 

13.1 Further guidance may be obtained from the following publications: 

AVAILABLE FROM TITLE  

The Stationery Office (Mail, Telephone, Fax & 
Internet Orders) 
 
TSO Orders/Post Cash Dept 
PO Box 29 
Norwich 
NR3 1GN 
 
Telephone:  0870 600 5522 
Fax orders:  0870 600 5533  
Web:  www.tso.co.uk 

 

 

Entry Level Guide: ‘A short guide to making your 
premises safe from fire’ 
 
Fire safety in small and medium places of 
assembly 
ISBN-13: 978 1 85112 820 4 
 
Fire safety in large places of assembly  
ISBN-13: 978 1 85112 821 1 
 
Fire safety in theatres and cinemas  
ISBN-13: 978 1 85112 822 8 
 
Fire Safety Risk Assessment - Means of Escape for 
Disabled People 
ISBN: 978 1 85112 873 7 

HSE Publications: http://www.hse.gov.uk/ 
 
HSE Books 
PO Box 1999 
Sudbury 
Suffolk 
CO10 0JY 
 
Telephone:  01787 884148 

1. Five steps to risk assessment  

2. The event safety guide 

Page 48

http://www.tso.co.uk/
http://www.hse.gov.uk/


 

GN_71  Page 7 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

Association of British Theatre Technicians/LDSA 
Publications are available from the ABTT website: 
http://www.abtt.org.uk/pages/home/homeframe
s.html 

OR 

ABTT 
55 Farringdon Road 
London EC1M 3JB 

Telephone:  0207 242 9200 

 
1. The Model National Standard Conditions for 

Places of Entertainment and Associated 
Guidance 

 
2. Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment 

BSI Shop 

Online: 

http://shop.bsigroup.com/ 

Offline & enquiries: 

Email: cservices@bsigroup.com 
Tel: +44 845 086 9001 
Fax: +44 20 8996 7001 

BSI Customer Services 
389 Chiswick High Road 
London 
W4 4AL 

 

BS 8300 - Design of buildings and their 
approaches to meet the needs of disabled people. 
Code of practice 

BS 9999 - Code of practice for fire safety in the 
design, management and use of buildings 

 

Planning Portal 

Online government website: 

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/ 

 

Approved Document M (Access to and use of 
buildings) - Volume 1: Dwellings – free to 
download 

The above publications are current at the time of preparation of this Guidance Note (see date at foot of 
last page). 

The “Fire Safety” guides listed above may also be downloaded free of charge from the Fire Safety Law 
Section of the CLG website at: www.communities.gov.uk. 

Page 49

http://www.abtt.org.uk/pages/home/homeframes.html
http://www.abtt.org.uk/pages/home/homeframes.html
http://shop.bsigroup.com/
mailto:cservices@bsigroup.com
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/wps/portal/portalhome/unauthenticatedhome/!ut/p/c5/04_SB8K8xLLM9MSSzPy8xBz9CP0os3gjtxBnJydDRwMLbzdLA09nSw_zsKBAIwN3U_1wkA6zeHMXS4gKd29TRwNPI0s3b2e_AGMDAwOIvAEO4Gig7-eRn5uqX5CdneboqKgIAGUwqho!/dl3/d3/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
http://www.communities.gov.uk/fire/firesafety/firesafetylaw/


 

GN_71  Page 8 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

Appendix A 
 

Key to Plan Symbols 

 

 

Means of escape and equipment 
 

All doors, walls, partitions, screens and glazing shown in: - 

(a) Thick black line, or 

(b) Thick black broken line, or 

(c) Red 

on plan are to comply with the definition of FIRE RESISTING. 
 

 Fire Alarm Call Point with Fire Action Sign adjacent, the contents of 
which should be based on the Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan for the 
premises. 

SL Security Lock (Door, which may be provided with special fastening as 
described on plan). 

FFF Doors which are to be free from all fastenings (other than a ball or roller 
fastening or a lever handled latch).  This is to ensure that the door is 
always available for escape from either side. 

 Control panel sounders.  

 

 Control panel illuminated signals .  

 

 Control panel sounders and illuminated signals.  

 

 

SCA 
Self-closing door incorporating an automatic release e.g., Electro 
Magnetic Door Holder. 

 

PB Doors which are to be provided with a panic bolt.  There should be a 
notice adjacent to the fastening indicating the method of opening 
(minimum 5mm lettering). 

 

SF Doors that have only a simple fastening which is easily and immediately 
openable by a person on his/her way out without use of a key, e.g., 
barrel bolts, night latch, lever handle, etc. 

 

TP Fire Alarm Telephone point. 

Page 50



 

GN_71  Page 9 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

VP A panel of clear glass in the door or adjacent partition shown on plan.  It 
should be of an appropriate size and in a suitable position which gives the 
occupant of the inner room early visual warning of fire.  This glass should 
be Fire Resisting if the door or partition is shown as such. 

 

S Door assembly, which is able to resist the passage of smoke when, 
tested in accordance with the British Standard in force at the date of 
manufacture. 

 

 

 
 

Fire fighting equipment 
 

 

 Fire Extinguisher: e.g. 13A or 34B. Number indicates the extinguishing 
capability and the letter indicates the class of fire that the extinguisher is 
suitable for. For further information see our guidance note FSGN 8. 

 Aqueous Film Forming Foam Extinguisher 

 

 Water Fire Extinguisher 

 

 Fire Blanket in container 

 

 Carbon Dioxide Fire Extinguisher  

 

 Dry Powder Extinguisher 

 

 Foam Fire Extinguisher 

 

 Hydraulic hose reel.  A number following this symbol indicates the 
length of the tubing in metres. 

 Sand Bucket 

 

 Area covered by Fixed Fire Extinguisher installation (i.e. Co2) 

 

 Area covered by Automatic Sprinkler installation. 

 

 

Page 51



 

GN_71  Page 10 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

All firefighting equipment should be so placed as to be readily available for use.  They should be mounted on 
brackets or suitable shelves in conspicuous positions so that the carrying handles of the larger heavier extinguishers 
are approximately 1m from the floor, and the handles of the smaller fire extinguishers/base of fire blankets are 
approximately 1.5m from the floor. 

 

Other codes 
 

 

 Area covered with a system of Escape Lighting that will illuminate the 
area upon failure of the normal lighting power supply, to a sufficient 
standard to enable persons to leave the area safely.  The escape lighting 
system should conform to the British Standard current at the time of its 
installation and a certificate to this effect kept. 

 

 Refuge Area temporary assembly point for those persons of impaired 
mobility, e.g.: wheelchair users, who are unable to independently reach 
a final exit. BS5588, pt8, Section 8 refers. Refuge areas should be a 
minimum of 900mm X 1400mm.  

 

 Area covered by Automatic Heat Detectors 

 

 Area covered by Automatic Smoke Detectors 

 

PR Area covered by Pressurisation system 

 

MSE Area covered by Mechanical Smoke Extraction 

 

NSE Area covered by Natural Smoke Extraction 

 

POC Pressurisation Override Control 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 52



 

GN_71  Page 11 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

Notices 
 

 Boxes like this indicate signs.  The following codes show the wording 
displayed on the notices. 

All notices should normally conform to the British Standard for signs 
which is current at the date of installation and the minimum size of 
lettering is as indicated below unless otherwise shown adjacent to the 
code on plan. 

 

  Additional Notes 

Directional arrow. 

 

 

 

Notice suspended above head height at right angles to the escape 
route with the graphic symbol on the approach side. 

 

 

As above but with the graphic symbol on both sides of the notice. 

 Indicates that the notice is internally illuminated. 

 
 

 Fire exit, exit or emergency exit notice graphic symbol. 

 

 
 Minimum size of lettering 

 Slide to open (with arrow indicating direction). 25 mm 

 Fire escape keep clear. 25 mm 

 Gangway keep clear. 25 mm 

 Secure door open when premises are occupied. 25 mm 

 Highly flammable material - keep locked. 25 mm 

 No smoking. 25 mm 

 Fire door keep shut. 5mm 

 Fire door keep locked. 5mm 

 

S S 

S22 

S22 

S 

S22 

S22 

S22 
 

S22 

S23 

S20 

S19 

S17 

S8 

S2 

S13 

S14 

Page 53



 

GN_71  Page 12 of 12 (Rev 7, 01/04/2018) 

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London Dany Cotton London Fire Commissioner  

 

Page 54



  Annex 7 
 

IP1 Representation – Resident A 
 

 
I wish to object to the licence application on the grounds that the noise nuisance 
generated by this venue will unreasonably and substantially interfere with the use or 
enjoyment of my home and garden. As I am a person that is sensitive to noise 
pollution (there are many others), it makes my life miserable leading to depression 
and anxiety and it's impact at night is especially unwelcome as my sleep is disturbed.  
 
This application is for 8 am until 6 am the following morning, seven days a week. 
This is an unacceptable amount of time for a person to be subjected to noise 
nuisance. Potentially this nuisance could continue for days on end.  
 
There is very little built environment between the venue and a densely populated 
area of Waltham Forest. The prevailing wind is from the west and carries the sound 
across the river valley and reservoir.  
 
In the past there was a Warehouse music venue on a site very close to this new 
proposal. I was regularly woken by the noise, and it took me some time to establish 
the source, allowing me to make a complaint. Many people in Waltham Forest 
complained about the noise disturbance but were unable to trace the source.  
 
My compromise would be that a license is granted for a limited number of days each 
month and for a trial period of time (not one year!) to see how residents respond. At 
the moment this venture has had no publicity in Waltham Forest. I understand you 
have fulfilled your legal requirement regarding the posting of notices, regrettably 
noise nuisance does not end at the borough boundary.  
 
 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 8a
Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

1 

Requirement/Basis of 
Representation 
(see Letter of 12th April 2019) 

Authority Compliance by 
Applicant  
4640/4578&98 

Representation for application 4640, and for 4578 &98 (unless stated otherwise) 
(a)  

Relevance to Licensing Objectives 
(CD)(PN)(HC)(PS) and (ALL)1 

Other observations by THFC 

1. 
Procedural Requirements 

(17)2

Application is subject to 
compliance with Regulations 

(17(2)) 

Form of Application  
Prescribed form  used  

(54) 
Reg3. 10  

Compliance with Regulations 
required by applicant 
and by Licensing Authority 

Reg. 4 
Reg. 6 

X 
X 

For the Reasons explained below, the Application submitted by the Applicant was 
defective and should not proceed to a Hearing.   The ability for the application to 
be heard at a Committee Hearing is dependent on the requirements in Regulation 
17 having first been met.  

ALL 

The Licensing Act (and Regulations) set out the statutory 
framework with which compliance must be achieved.   
This is to ensure that the Responsible Authorities and 
Interested Parties (and the Licensing Committee) have 
sufficient information to adequately consider the 
application before them.   

Without the application being made in the correct form 
with the correct supporting documents, there can be no 
guarantee that any of the Licensing Objectives will be 
met.  

The applications are seeking late 
licences (operating 22 hours daily) 
for large capacity crowd (10,000 to 
40,000).  One would expect full 
information have been provided to 
the Responsible Authorities and 
interested parties in advance of any 
formal application for permanent 
licences being made.   

THFC4 has no confidence that on the 
scant information provided by the 
Applicant in both applications, the 
Licensing Objectives will be 
promoted.   Without limiting the 
aforesaid, the Applicants have 
completely failed to explain how 
their proposed “Premises” will 
operate safely when a (bowl) Event 
is taking place at Tottenham Hotspur 
Stadium; at Alexandra Palace; at the 
London Stadium and/or at other 
event venues in the locality  

Operating Schedule must 
accompany application 

X X  The Operating Schedule lacks sufficient clarity – see Section 2 of this 
Representation  

ALL 
Due to the paucity of information provided as to how this 
large capacity “venue” will operate there are concerns 
that none of the Licensing Objectives will be promoted  

See comments to the left and 
Section 2 of Representation  

1 CD = Prevention of crime and disorder; PN= Prevention of Public Nuisance; HC = prevention of harm to children; PS – promotion of Public Safety. 
All – means that the matter (and Representation) is relevant to all four Licensing Objectives 

2  All references in brackets are to the relevant section in the Licensing Act 2003 

3 References to Regulations are to the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. 
4 Tottenham Hotspur Limited and Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co Ltd 

Annex 8b
P

age 61



Appendix 2 

2 
 

      
Plan in Prescribed Form      
Plan in prescribed form must 
accompany the application  

(17(3)(b))  
The Applicant has 
failed to comply 
with Regulation 
23(3) including 
23(3(a) to 23(d) 

X  
 
The Plan lodged for each application lacks the information required by Regulation 
23 and is illegible.  
 
It provides no details as to which proposed licensable activities are to be 
conducted where in the proposed Premises.  It therefore also fails to comply with 
Regulation 23(3)(d)  
 

ALL 
 
As the plan for each application is illegible, it is 
impossible to see from this how the proposed “Premises” 
could safely be assessed to be used for, or actually used 
for, any licensable activities let alone those involving 
large-scale capacity crowds of between 10,000 and 
40,000.     
 
The Responsible Authorities on receipt of the plans will 
not be able to adequately assess whether the proposed 
“Premises” can be operated safely (not least as they will 
not be able to take measurements from the plan). 
 
For an application of this nature, involving large scale 
audiences, not only should clear plans have been lodged 
of the proposed Premises - but also proposed layout 
plans (showing probable stage positions; crowd-flow 
modelling; medical/first aid points etc).  
 
In view of the locality of the proposed “Premises” and 
particularly its locality to waterways – the Applicant 
should have lodged clear plans showing the position of 
the proposed Premises with reference to the waterways; 
the location of roads and bridges.   Reference should 
have been made (in the Operating Schedule) as to how 
the Applicants will meet the recommendations of the 
Purple Guide – for example in relation to Venue Capacity 
paragraphs (see Appendix 3) 
 

For an application of this nature, 
involving planned large scale 
audiences, not only should clear 
plans have been lodged of the 
proposed “Premises” - but also 
proposed layout plans (showing 
probable stage positions; crowd-flow 
modelling; medical/first aid points 
etc.) for likely Events in the licensed 
space.   
 
One would expect the various layout 
plans to be provided in advance of, 
or certainly with the LIC 25 
application so that they form part of 
the application and the Operating 
Schedule therein.  
 
Such detailed plans (showing what 
licensable activities are likely to take 
place where) are of crucial 
importance particularly where the 
proposed Site has no infrastructure 
in place to meet any of the usual 
requirements – to allow for the safe 
access/egress of crowds (including 
disabled guests); security measures; 
first aid and toilet provisions etc… 
 
No consideration appears to have 
been given in advance of making the 
application to the Event Safety Guide 
(the Purple Guide).    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

      
Prescribed form of Plan  Reg.23(1) X X The Plan is illegible and fails to show the prescribed information at Regulation 23 

(3)  
 

ALL – see above  See above  

Contents of plan  Reg.23(3) X X See above comments ALL – see above  See above  

                                                           
5 Any bold or underling in this representation is for emphasis only. 

P
age 62



Appendix 2 

3 
 

 
 

 

      
      
Advertising of the 
6Application 

(17(5))     

Newspaper Reg.25(a)     
Site Notices  Reg.25(b) X X  

 
The Site Notices do not appear to have been erected in prominent positions.  In 
particular the Site Notices for application(s) 4578&98 were poorly displayed (see 
photograph at Appendix 3).   Whilst a Site Notice was erected at the entrance to 
the wooded area – there was no Site Notice at the exit to that area – although this 
would have been a logical, obvious place to put one. 
 
The effect of Section 17(5)(a)(ii) is that the advertisements must not only be in the 
prescribed form but they must be advertised “in a manner which is prescribed and 
is likely to bring the application to the attention of persons who live, or are 
involved in a business in the relevant licensing authority area and who are likely to 
be affected by it”.  
 

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 
 

 

Information for notices Reg.26(4)     
Advertising by Licensing 
Authority  

S.17(5) 
(aa) 

X X    
 
The Applications as advertised on the website by the Licensing Authority do not 
match the applications advertised in the local press or the Site Notices displayed 
by the Applicants.   The Licensing Authority has advertised three applications 
whereas the Applicant has made two applications  

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 

 

      
Determination of a Premises 
Licence application7 

(18)     

      
Application must comply with 
sections 17 and advertising 
requirements (of Applicant 
and LA) 

(18(1) X X    
 
As the Applications have not been made in the correct form (in the sense of 
insufficient and contradictory information being given in the Operating Schedule; 
insufficient advertising of the applications and/or inadequate plans being lodged) 
the Licensing Committee has no jurisdiction to consider the applications at 
Committee.   
 
Section 18 only permits the Licensing Authority to determine any application for 
a Premises licence where the application was received by it in accordance with 
Section 17 and where it is satisfied that the Applicant has fulfilled the 
requirements stipulated by the Regulations. 

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 

 

                                                           
6 Reference should also be made to the Revised Guidance to the Act, paragraphs 8.80 to 8.87 
7 Reference should also be made to the Revised Guidance to the Act, section 9  

P
age 63



Appendix 2 

4 
 

 
 

      
 
 
 

     

The Licensing Authority’s 
powers at a Hearing  

(18(3))  Note:  If the Licensing Committee does hear the Applications, it only has the 
powers available to it as set out in section 18(3) LA 2003.    In terms of granting any 
licence subject to conditions, those conditions must be “appropriate” 
 
The conditions proposed by the Applicants are inappropriate for the reasons 
articulated in this Appendix 2.  

ALL 
 
The Operating Schedule set out by the Applicants is 
inadequate and inappropriate for the reasons set out in 
section 2 of this Appendix below.   
 
 

The Operating Schedule set out by 
the Applicants is inadequate and 
inappropriate for the reasons set out 
in section 2 of this Appendix below.   
 
It is our submission that a Licence 
cannot lawfully be issued on the 
basis that there may (or may not) be 
future agreement of fundamental 
terms (relating to the four Licensing 
Objectives) with third parties, which 
may (or may not) then be treated as 
“conditions”.      
 
Such conditions (based on an 
agreement to the Licensing 
Committee to agree with other third 
parties) would fall foul of 
s.18(4)(a)(i).  Such assurances 
(contingent on reaching agreement 
with third parties) do not result in 
enforceable conditions. 
  
The Licensing Authority should only 
grant the Applications if it is entirely 
satisfied (on the information already 
forming part of the Operating 
Schedule) that the Applicant has 
provided evidence to demonstrate 
that it can promote all four Licensing 
Objectives at a large scale event, 
when the emergency services and 
Responsible Authorities may be 
committed to an existing licensed 
event elsewhere, in close proximity.   
  
 
 
 

      
Revised Guidance to 
Licensing Act 2003  

     

Compliance with Guidance  Para.1.16 X Conditions on Premises Licences must be …..precise and enforceable; 
unambiguous and clear; must be tailored to the individual type location and 

ALL 
The information provided by the Applicant in its 
applications (section M) is imprecise; unenforceable; and 

 
Whilst the Applicants have set out 
various steps in section M of their 

P
age 64



Appendix 2 

5 
 

characteristics of the premises and events concerned …..should be capable of 
being met…….. 
 
The conditions proposed by the Applicants are inappropriate for the reasons 
articulated in Appendix 2. 

provides assurances (for example around the future 
involvement of SAG members and the future possible 
agreement of measures) which may or may not be 
capable of being fulfilled.   
 

applications, in most instances those 
steps lack precision and/or refer to 
future discussion/agreements/ 
activities (which may or may not 
actually happen).  For example 
assurances are put forward that 
numerous plans (for example 
relating to Traffic Management; 
Noise Management; Risk 
Assessment; Medical Management) 
will be “devised” or will “define” or 
“detail” the specifics but this does 
not provide any guarantee that the 
plans will a) be prepared to a 
satisfactory standard; b) taking into 
account matters relating to the 
Licensing Objectives; c) take into 
account the views of Interested 
Parties etc….. 
 
For large scale events, THFC are of 
the view that the Applicants should 
have prepared the various plans in 
advance of making their applications 
and should have circulated them to 
the Responsible Authorities.  The 
Plans should have been available for 
inspection to Interested Parties at 
least to the extent that those 
Interested Parties will be impacted 
by the planned large scale events. 
 
 
  

      
 Para 2.7 

to 2.9 
X Licence Holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their 

premises….a number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety 
including the 8 items bulleted in para 2.8.    Applicants should consider when 
making their application which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the 
public safety and demonstrate how they achieve that… 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 
 
 

X  ALL but specifically public safety  
 
 
 

 
See above comments and further 
comments in Section 2 

      
 Para 8.34 X Plans….must be in a format with is “clear and legible in all material aspects” i.e 

they must be accessible and provide sufficient detail for the licensing authority to 
be able to determine the application including the relative size of any features 

 
The plans submitted are illegible and lack any clear 
information (particularly, but not limited to, lack of detail 

 

P
age 65



Appendix 2 

6 
 

relevant to the application.  There is no requirement for the plans to be 
professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information.  

around the external walls of the proposed “Premises”; 
and access/egress from the “Premises”  
 
See comments above in relation to failure to comply with 
Section 17 and Regulation 23 requirements 
  
 

See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation  

 Para 8.41 X In completing an Operating Schedule, Applicants are expected to have regard to 
the statement of licensing policy for their area.  They must also …..demonstrate 
knowledge of their local areas when describing the steps they propose to take to 
promote the licensing objectives.  ……  Applicants are also expected to undertake 
their own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to form the 
content of the application.  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL  
 
The Operating Schedules fail to take sufficient account of 
the Statement of Licensing Policy (see below) and fail to 
take any account of the fact that the Applicant is 
proposing large scale events in an area of considerable 
congestion, within a “stone’s throw” of large licensed 
Stadia and other Event spaces.  
 

 
 
See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation 

 Para 8.42 
to 8.7  

X These paragraphs set out various expectations of the Applicants prior to making or 
on making any application for a Premises Licence.  These include (in summary 
only): 
 

• Providing sufficient information to demonstrate (when setting out steps 
they propose to take) that they understand the layout of the local area and 
physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots; risks posed to 
the local area by their proposed licensable activities… 
 

• How the Applicants will manage potential risks; 
 

• Through making local enquiries – consider all factors which may be 
relevant to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 

• Providing Licensing Authorities with sufficient information (covering their 
applications) to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in their area. 
  

The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL  
 
The applications submitted by the Applicants fail to 
demonstrate that they have fulfilled any of the 
expectations set out in these paragraphs of the Guidance.  
Without limiting the aforesaid, the Operating Schedules 
fail to take sufficient account of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy (see below) and fail to take any account 
of the fact that the Applicant is proposing large scale 
events in an area of considerable congestion, within a 
“stone’s throw” of large licensed Stadia and licensed 
event spaces (such as Alexandra Palace) 

See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation 

 Para 8.49 X ….all Operating Schedules should be precise and clear about the measures that are 
proposed to promote each of the Licensing Objectives  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  

X  ALL  
The Operating Schedules submitted are not precise and 
clear, but largely attempt to shift the responsibilities to 
promote the Licensing Objectives onto other parties 
(particularly members of a SAG).   See further at section 2 
of this Representation  
 
 

See comments to left and further in 
Section 2 of Representation 

 Para 9.39  Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that 

X ALL  
 

THFC are of the view that the steps 
proposed by the Applicants in 
section M of their applications are 

P
age 66



Appendix 2 

7 
 

is merely aspirational….   Any conditions added to the Licence must be those 
imposed at the Hearing or those agreed when a hearing has not been necessary…. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

It follows from Section 18 LA 2003 and from this 
paragraph in the Guidance that licence conditions can 
only be imposed by the Licensing Committee. A condition 
for third parties (e.g. SAG members) to agree terms to 
comprise a condition at some stage in the future is 
outside the powers of the Licensing Committee.    
 

largely aspirational in the sense that 
the Applicants are stating that they 
will obtain the approval of 
fundamental operational plans from 
third parties (SAG).   Such conditions 
are inappropriate and 
unenforceable, rendering any such 
conditions entirely useless.  See 
Section 2 below  
 
 
 
 

      
Enfield Council, Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

     

Compliance with Policy       
 Para 3.3 X Conditions attached to any Licence will focus on matters within the control of 

individual licensees and in the vicinity of the proposed Premises.  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL X  
The conditions offered by the 
Applicants are not matters which are 
within their control – they are 
promising matters which the 
Applicants cannot control for 
example obtaining approvals from 
third parties such as SAG members.  
Such conditions are inappropriate 
and unenforceable.   
 

 Para. 8.3 X The Licensing Objectives should be paramount considerations at all times 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules fails to demonstrate how in 
reality the LOS will be treated and enforced as paramount.  

X  ALL 
 
The Applicants’ operating schedules contain insufficient 
information to demonstrate that they will ensure that the 
promotion of the Licensing Objectives at all times will be 
achieved.    Assurances to enter into discussions and to 
seek third party approval are not sufficient to amount to 
enforceable conditions and thus the Licensing Objectives 
have not been treated as paramount.   See further the 
comments in Section 2 of this Representation  
 
 
 
 

 
 
See comment to the left and in 
Section 2 of this Representation  
 
 
 

 Para. 9.8 X The local authority and Police are under a duty to do all they reasonably can to 
prevent crime an disorder in their area. 
 

X  ALL 
 
See comments to the right.  It follows from the lack of 
approval operational plans that the Local Authority and 
Police are not in a position to meet this duty.  

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 

P
age 67



Appendix 2 

8 
 

duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 
 
 

 Para. 11.1 X An Operating Schedule is submitted with a Licence Application and contains the 
information required by section 17(4).   Among other things, it includes the steps 
that the Applicant proposes to take to promote the Licensing Objectives.   
 
Where a risk to the Licensing Objectives is present, the Council expects applicants 
to specifically address in their operating schedules how they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration. 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules fails to demonstrate how in 
reality the LOS will be treated and enforced as paramount. 

X  ALL 
 
 
See comments to the right and specifically in Section 2 of 
the Representation below.    The Applicants have failed to 
particularise the means by which they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  These Special Factors go to all four 
Licensing Objectives.   

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 
duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 
 

 Para 12 – 
12.2.1 to 
12.4.7 

X Special Factors for Consideration.  
 
The “means” by which each of the Licensing Objectives will be promoted must be 
detailed in the Operating Schedule.    
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 
 

X  ALL 
 
 
See comments to the right and specifically in Section 2 of 
the Representation below.    The Applicants have failed to 
particularise the means by which they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  These Special Factors go to all four 
Licensing Objectives.   

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 
duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 

 Para.  
12.2.4 

X This paragraph specifically provides that to promote Public Safety, the Applicants 
should provide “the means by which risk to public safety will be ….prevented by 
effective management and operation of the licensed activities including …the 
adequacy of transportation arrangements to ensure that customers may safely 
travel to and from the premises and nuisance is avoided by concentrations of 
people unable to access transport in a timely manner” 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL but specifically public safety  
 
See comments to the right.  It is incumbent on the 
Applicant to satisfy the Licensing Committee and 
Responsible Authorities (and Interested Parties) that it 
could operate a large scale event on any day of the week 
when other large scale licensed events will be taking 
place at other venues which already have the benefit of 
Premises Licences and in some cases GSCs8. 
 
In simple terms the Applicants have completely failed to 
articulate in their application/Operating Schedule how 
they will ensure the safe transportation of between 
10,000 and 40,000 from their proposed “Premises” when 
the local transport infrastructure is already fully utilised 
by licensed events in the vicinity.    

No details have been provided by 
the Applicants as to how they intend 
to run safe events at the proposed 
premises when existing licensed 
events are taking place at 
neighbouring large venues including 
the Stadium; London Stadium; 
Alexandra Palace etc….     
 
Transport Plans relating to the 
operation of Tottenham Hotspur 
Stadium (and no doubt similar plans 
are in place for the operation of 
London Stadium) as part of their 
GSC.  These plans have been 
approved by the Authorities 

                                                           
8 GSC = General Safety Certificate  

P
age 68



Appendix 2 

9 
 

 following considerable consultation 
and planning.   They have been 
approved and adopted and are now 
operational.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
      
2.  
Operating Schedule 
Deficiencies  

     

   X    Regulation 17(4); the Guidance to the Act and Enfield Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy all set out requirements regarding the contents of the Operating 
Schedule.  These requirements are to ensure that the level of detail in the 
Operating Schedule is sufficient to enable the Responsible Authorities to fulfil their 
duties; to enable Interested Parties and/or Other Persons to consider what is 
planned, and ultimately to enable the Licensing Committee to consider whether 
sufficient measures have been offered to ensure that the Licensing Objectives 
(which are of paramount importance) will be promoted if the licence is issued.  
 
The Operating Schedules lodged by the Applicants are deficient as they lack the 
required detail.  For example (but not limited to): 
 
Application for Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6 6a & b: 
 

• The general description of the proposed premises is devoid of detail for 
example it provides no information about the size of the 4 or 5 units; 
where they are positioned in the overall site; whether the proposed 
“Premises” includes any outside space; whether the Units are single-storey 
 

• The assurance that a “detailed plan of each event” will be provided to the 
Responsible Authorities is meaningless – to whom at the Responsible 
Authorities; when will it be provided; what happens if the Responsible 
Authorities are unhappy about the contents of the plan? 
 

• The Application refers to the above Units but promotional materials 
identify different Units – See information at Appendix 3. 
 

• The  Operating Schedule is devoid of any meaningful detail relating to 
each of the following proposed licensable activities: 
 
Plays – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 

X  ALL  
 
General Principles 
 
THFC’s representation in relation to the matters set out 
in this section are essentially on the basis that the 
Applicant has failed to give sufficient detail in its 
Operating Schedule of its intended operation let alone of 
the measures that will be implemented to promote the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
The paucity of information in the Operating Schedule is 
obvious with the Applicant essentially stating that 
because the Units are not fitted out as suitable licensed 
premises (with bar locations; audience spaces; staging; 
lighting; clear access and egress points etc…) all the 
information will follow.   In our view this approach is 
irresponsible and provides no details on which the 
Responsible Authorities or Licensing Committee could be 
satisfied that the planned licensable events will be 
conducted in a manner that promotes the Licensing 
Objectives.  
 
The lack of detail in the Operating Schedule is all the 
more concerning when the Applicants have already 
promoted and sold tickets to a large capacity Event – 
Field Day – in June 2019 (see Appendix 3).    Arranging 
such an Event without first preparing the necessary 
operational plans (including those relating to Noise 
Management; Emergency Contingency Plans; 
Transportation; etc) and entering into full consultation 
with the Responsible Authorities and relevant Other 
Persons (such as THFC and operators of other major 
licensed venues in close proximity), appears incredible.  If 

 

P
age 69



Appendix 2 

10 
 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the Plays will take 
place; the position of any staging; audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details 
 

 
Films  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units the films will be 

shown; the position of any screens; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details. 

 
 

Indoor Sporting Events  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• No information about the likely nature of the sport; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units the sport will take 

place; the position of any sporting equipment; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details 

 
 

Boxing or Wrestling  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units boxing/wrestling 

make take place;  audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details 

 
 

Live Music – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 indoors daily/9:00 
to 22:30 outdoors daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily indoors for 22 hours a day; 
outdoors for 13.5 hours daily; 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the activity will be 
conducted; the position of any staging or other demountable structures; 
audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details including no 
agreed Noise Management specifics. 

 
 

those plans are in existence, they should have been 
provided as part of the application.    Such plans are all 
the more important where the proposed “Premises” does 
not have the infrastructure (managerial or operational) 
for putting on events involving licensable activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 70



Appendix 2 

11 
 

Recorded  Music – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 indoors 
daily/9:00 to 22:30 outdoors daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily indoors for 22 hours a day; 
outdoors for 13.5 hours daily; 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the activity will be 
conducted; the position of any staging or other demountable structures; 
audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details including no 
agreed Noise Management specifics. 

 
Dance (and similar activities to music and dance)  – proposed to take place 
from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units Dance performances 

will take place; the position of any staging; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details or agreed noise 

management measures (if any) 
 

Late Night Refreshment  – proposed to take place daily from 23:00 to 
05:00  
 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is provided relating to operational details 
 

 
Sale of Alcohol  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that sales will be for consumption on and off the Premises; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units bars will be situated; 
• The likely nature of any on or off sales. 

 
Opening Hours:  08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the Premises will be open daily for 22 hours a day. 
 
 

Section M – Steps to promote the Licensing Objectives is deficient as: 
• The plans listed in Section M(A) (1) are not in existence and assurances to 

provide appropriate plans are insufficient.  If paragraph (1) is intended to 
be a condition on the licence it would be meaningless and unenforceable.   

• M(A)(3) – is unclear as suggests that for some events the capacity will not 
be limited to 9,999 (inclusive of staff and performers); 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 71



Appendix 2 

12 
 

• M(A)(7) – this is vague – the applicant failing to identify numbers of door 
supervisors depending on capacity of event and risk assessment level; who 
will conduct the Risk Assessment; the form of Risk Assessment; the search 
policy that will apply depending on Risk etc… 

• M(A)(9) – The “operational plan” referred to herein does not appear to be 
available; the crowd management plan also appears to be aspirational.  

• M(A)(10) – Transport Options – this fails to demonstrate any 
understanding of the locality and in particular existing pressures on the 
transport infrastructure. 

• M(A)(18) – This suggested condition relating to CCTV is not sufficiently 
precise; 

• M(A)(19) – This suggested condition is vague and unenforceable; it is 
unclear whether a “transport statement” exists but it was not served with 
the application and does not form part of the Operating Schedule.   

• M(A)(22) – Event “Overview” – this suggested condition is vague and 
meaningless.   The Responsible Authorities cannot be expected to manage 
the licensed premises; 

• M(A)(24) – This is a vague and unenforceable condition ; 
• M(A)(26) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition; 
• M(A)(27) to (32) These are vague and unenforceable condition, as they fail 

to identify who is responsible for compliance and/or refer to non-existent 
plans.  

• M(A)(36) This is vague and  unenforceable as no Venue Operational Plan 
has been made available.   

• M(A)(37)  This condition is inappropriate and unenforceable – see general 
principles. 

 
 
 

Application for Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6 6a & b, and Land to the south of 
Units 4, 5, 6, 6a and 6b: 

 
• As this application is virtually identical to the “Units only” application, the 

bullets listed above are repeated in their entirety as applicable to this 
“Festival Licence” application – save that the plan submitted in support of 
this application does include outdoor space. 
 

• In addition: 
 

•  The general description is equally vague.   Mention is made of 
“warehouses” rather than “Units”; again no details are given as to the size 
of the “warehouses” or whether they are one/two storeys; 

• The suggestion that the proposed “Premises” is suitable for 25,000 (let 
alone 40,000) is not supported by information in its Operating Schedule; 

• Again a “detailed layout plan” showing details “will be provided” and this 
will apparently be “agreed through the SAG progress”.  This is entirely 
inappropriate for the reasons set out in section 3 below.   

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X  ALL  
 
General Principles 
 
THFC’s representation in relation to the matters set out 
in this section are essentially on the basis that the 
Applicant has failed to give sufficient detail in its 
Operating Schedule of its intended operation let alone of 
the measures that will be implemented to promote the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
In simple terms the Applicant is proposing that it will put 
on festivals and similar events with initially 25,000 people 
but then increasing to 40,000, subject only to obtaining 
approval from a SAG.   For the reasons set out in Section 
3 below, this submission is fundamentally flawed as the 
purpose of a SAG is not to approve events; nor to 

P
age 72



Appendix 2 

13 
 

Section M – Steps to promote the Licensing Objectives is deficient as  
 

• The proposal that “the running of the festival and/or large scale events 
and licensing requirements will be approved by a formal SAG process” is 
inappropriate and unenforceable.   See General Principles and Section 3 
below.  
 

• For the same reasons, it is a fallacy to submit that any “EMSP” or any of 
the Plans listed in M(b)(1(a) to (i) will be subject to “the requirements of 
the Licensing Authority and the Enfield Safety Advisory Group”; In relation 
to the former – the Licensing Authority does not have powers to approve 
or disapprove arrangements after a licence has been granted.  The SAG has 
no authority to approve or disapprove operational plans provided by the 
Applicant.    

 
• M(b)(2) – Again this is inappropriate and/or vague – there being no 

defined SAG “process” and a SAG being only advisory in nature. 
  

• M(b((4)  This proposed condition is valueless as it is based on conditions 
which are in themselves unenforceable; 
 

• M(b)(9) to (13), (18), (19)  are a repetition of the proposed conditions in 
relation to the “Units only” application so the comments made in  
opposition are equally applicable to this application. 
 

• M(b)(22) –The suggested condition regarding consulting with THFC (in view 
of the proximity of Tottenham Hotspur Stadium “to collaboratively 
manage events is vague; meaningless and unenforceable.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• M(b)(23)  – This is a vague and unenforceable condition as it appears the 
the Crowd Management Plan or the Drugs Policy are not yet in existence.  

• M(b)(26) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition 
• M(b)(27) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition as the Safety 

Advisory Group is not in a position to agree  (or disagree) the measures 
proposed by the Applicants. 

• M(b)(28) and (29), (32) to(37) - These proposed steps are vague would not 
be enforceable condition, as they fail to identify who is responsible for 
compliance and/or refer to non-existence plans.  

• M(A)(42) This condition is rendered ineffectual as the Event Management 
and Safety Plan has not been provided  and any EMSP that is developed 

stipulate licensing requirements.  Any SAG is an advisory 
group and it has not powers (and it is not its role) to 
stipulate licensing conditions – that is the role of the 
Licensing Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See above comments  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tottenham Hotspur Stadium, London Stadium; Alexandra 
Palace and other major venues in close proximity to the 
proposed “Premises” already have the benefit of 
Premises Licences (and in some cases General Safety 
Certification).   The Applicants cannot proffer conditions 
which involve third parties over whom they have no 
control.  It is for the Applicants to satisfy the Licensing 
Committee that they can operate their licensed premises 
without negatively impacting on the community including 
those licensed premises which have had to go through 
the process of obtaining suitable licences for their 
respective operations. 
 
 

P
age 73



Appendix 2 

14 
 

through the SAG as suggested by the Applicants is incapable of being 
“approved” and of being an enforceable condition on the licence.   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
      
      
3. 
Inappropriate Usurpation of 
powers from Licensing 
Authority to SAG  

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(s.4) 
 
 
 
(s.5)  

 Both applications made by the Applicants are devoid of sufficient detail (as set out 
in the Operating Schedules)  to enable the Responsible Authorities and the 
Licensing Committee to properly assess whether the proposed large scale events 
(involving a maximum of 40,000 people) could take place without negatively 
impacting on the Licensing Objectives.   
 
It is the Licensing Committee (or Licensing Authority under delegated powers, 
where applicable) that has the power to grant a licence subject to conditions.   
Conditions cannot be developed by third parties after the event (i.e. at some stage 
in the future post issue of the Licence) and “slotted into” the conditions on the 
Licence.   
 
The Applicants by repeatedly suggesting that various operational and management 
plans will materialise (post issue of a Premises Licence) following the “agreement” 
with SAG are attempting to usurp the function of the Licensing Committee.  It is 
the Licensing Committee that must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003 with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.   In carrying out its duties 
the Licensing Authority must also have regard to its own Licensing Statement and 
the Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X  ALL  
 

 

P
age 74



Appendix 2 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     

      
4.  Inappropriate delegation 
of operational 
responsibilities by Applicant 
to SAG 

     

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  In summary the Applicants are inviting the Licensing Committee to issue two 
licences for ill-defined “Premises”, for large capacity audiences (up to 40,000) on 
assurances that operational and management plans will follow and will be subject 
to the approval of a SAG.   This approach is fundamentally flawed for the reasons 
already set out above. 
 
SAG does not have the power to approve plans or to stipulate that certain steps 
will become licence conditions.   At best, the applications suggest a 
misunderstanding of the powers of a SAG; at worst, they risk being viewed by 
Interested Parties as an attempt to obtain wide-reaching; late licences for large 
capacity events “through the back door”.    
 
SAG’s are advisory and have no legal status.   Further there is a dearth of 
information even about the SAG that the Applicant is proposing be involved, in the 
future, as proposed in its applications. No information has been provided 
concerning the proposed terms of reference for the SAG or who the core 
membership of the SAG is likely to comprise.    No information has been adduced 
to demonstrate that the proposed core member of the SAG have agreed to be part 
of it.  From the scarcity of information provided by the Applicant, there is no 
evidence to demonstrate that they have considered the recommendations in the 
Purple Guide9  (section 25) or similar publication concerning the role of SAGs.   
 
 

X  ALL  
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules 
fails to demonstrate how in reality the LOS will be treated 
and enforced as paramount. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient 
comprising a standard but incomplete list of common 
measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into 
enforceable conditions.  
 

No disrespect to SAG’s is intended; 
they carry out an incredibly value 
role in providing guidance to event 
operators.   
 
However, it is highly inappropriate to 
advance that operational and/or 
management plans will be approved 
by SAG’s.   The 
ground/venue/“Premises” 
management is responsible for 
formulating their plans.  Where the 
premises do not need to obtain a 
GSC, those plans should, in our view, 
be in existence in advance of any 
Premises Licence being sought.   
 
 
  
 
 

5. Failure to establish that 
the Licensing Objectives will 
be promoted  

     

   Without fully articulated plans supporting the Licensing Objectives having been 
produced in advance of the applications, upon which the Responsible Authorities 
have had time to reflect,   all four licensing objectives will inevitably be negatively 
impacted as a result of the proposed large scale licensable events at the proposed 
“Premises”.    Where there is a lack of infrastructure supporting licensable 
activities the Applicant is under a greater obligation to ensure that its Operating 
Schedules provide a detailed framework – confirming what processes have already 
been developed to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are promoted.   
 
 
 

X  ALL 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules 
fails to demonstrate how in reality the LOS will be treated 
and enforced as paramount. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient 
comprising a standard but incomplete list of common 
measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into 
enforceable conditions.  

 
 

                                                           
9 The Purple Guide  - section 25 – Working in a Safety Advisory Group – see also Appendix 3. 

P
age 75



Appendix 2 

16 
 

  
 

P
age 76



Annex 8cPage 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 9
Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Annex 10 

IP5 - Resident B Representation 

 

I am grateful that as a result of my objections that the 192 will continue to run. 
  
I maintain that there is still a very real prospect that the rail station is not ready. In 
that instance, I do believe that a contingency should be made for a shuttle bus to 
Tottenham Hale. Ashley Rd can be used for pickup, drop off and turn back. 
  
I object to this being a 24hr event with trains stopping around 1pm with no night 
shuttle bus service to Tottenham Hale. 
  
I object to TfL not boosting nearby 24hr buses above 2bph after 1pm when the 
proposed train service is not operating. I propose that the 341, 34 and W3 be 
maintained at 4bph all night during the event and that the W3 be extended to Glover 
Drive for the event to avoid overcrowding. 
  
341 can be boosted to Manor House or Tottenham High Rd only, 34 can be boosted 
from Arnos Grove to Walthamstow only and W9 can be boosted to Wood Green 
only. 
  
I am concerned about how local residents will reach the site from Upper and Lower 
Edmonton by foot. Locals should not be routed via Tottenham Hale and there needs 
to be a special taxi rank for those who do not want to head to Tottenham Hale. 
 

 

______________________________________ 

 
Additional Information received 30/4/2019 
 
The venue website is advertising the 192 as a route to it. This is inappropriate 
because the 192 is presently beyond capacity at most times of the day in peak 
direction.  
 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Annex 11 
 
Representation from Esther Hughes, Enfield Safety Advisory Group Chair (SAG) 
Drum Sheds Only 
Ref: WK218074640 
 
From: Esther Hughes  
Sent: 10th April 2019 
 
Re: SAG Representation and Proposed Conditions for Premises Licence by Broadwick Venues Limited 

 

Premises: Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW  

 

 

Dear Ellie, 
 
 
Please consider this representation on behalf of the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) in respect of the above application   
under the licensing objectives Public Safety and Public Nuisance. 
 
On the 1st April 2019, Broadwick Venues Limited provided documentation in support of the licence application for regular use of 
the Drum Sheds at a capacity of 9,999. These documents were circulated to the SAG for comments. The Chair of the SAG 
acknowledges that some of the Responsible Authorities, who are stakeholders of the SAG will also submit their own 
representations. 
 
The SAG representation will not contradict any of the representations made by the Responsible Authorities but  seeks to ensure 
that the concerns of all SAG stakeholders are addressed. Furthermore, following legal advice to the SAG, the group have 
proposed some amendments to the wording of conditions. Again, these should not be at the detriment/contradict any proposed 
conditions by the Responsible Authorities, the intention is to strengthen and promote the licensing objectives. The SAG welcome 
further discussions with Broadwick Venues Limited regarding the proposed conditions.  
 
 

P
age 111



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 
 
 
Documentation provided to the SAG for the Drumsheds 
 

 
 

However, at the time of writing the following remain outstanding and therefore contribute to this representation.  

 
i) Emergency Evacuation Plan  

 Absence of detailed egress plans for planned and emergency evacuation of the site. (Public Safety Objective)  

 
 

i) Risk Assessments 

 Details of risk assessments (Public Safety Objective) 
 

 
ii) Venue Capacity Assessment for the warehouses (this document is not to the satisfaction of the London Fire Brigade; and 

will be dealt with by the Fire Brigade and Broadwick Venues Limited outside the comments of this representation)  
 
 

P
age 112



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 
 
 

iii) Noise Level 
 

 Whilst the noise management plan refers to a noise level, the SAG recommend that this is made an explicit 
licence condition. (Public Nuisance Objective) 

 
 

 
Broadwick Venues Limited have advised the SAG that the emergency evacuation plan and risk assessments will be circulated 
week commencing 8th April 2019. However, this will leave insufficient time for the SAG to consider these in advance of the last 
date for representations being Saturday 13th April 2019. (Effectively the last working day would be the 12th April) 
 
Therefore, the SAG would not wish to be prematurely “agreeing” to a licence without consultation on all the event management 
documents. Should these documents be circulated and agreed in advance of the licencing committee hearing then the SAG would 
seek to withdraw this representation. 
 
Having reviewed all of the event documentation there are some matters which require further clarification. Whilst these would not 
amount to a representation against the licence, the SAG would recommend that these are resolved in advance of the use of the 
licence should it be granted. More information is detailed in the SAG Licensing Committee Report which is not a representation 
but an informative for the Licensing Committee.   
 
In order to ensure that the conditions of the licence are enforceable and support the licensing objectives, the SAG make the 
following recommendations at section 3 below, regarding amendments to the proposed licence conditions. 
 
The SAG will continue to work with Broadwick Venues Limited who have been very accommodating to suggestions and proposals 
to date. We wish to continue this good working relationship. 
 
 
The black text has been taken from the licence application; the blue text is the proposed amendments and/or comments from the 

SAG.  

 

P
age 113



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 

 

 
 

1. Licence Application Overall  

 

1.1 All proposed licence conditions have the prefixed word “that” removed.  

 

2. Part 3 Operating Schedule 

 

Existing Wording and condition number 

on Application  

Proposed wording  

M a) General – all four licensing 

objectives (b, c, d and e) 

 

 

1. For all events, the premise licence 

holder shall have in place 

documentation for the venue that 

will be reviewed prior to each event 

and updated and amended if 

required. These documents will 

detail action to be taken by staff, will 

be available for inspection by the 

licensing authority and will include:  

- Venue Operational Plan;  

- Traffic Management Plan;  

- Security/Crowd Management 

Plan;  

 Reword to  

 

1 For all events, the premise licence holder shall have in place 

documentation for the venue; this will be reviewed prior to each event; 

updated and amended if required 

   

The documentation must include but is not limited to the following; 

(a) Venue Operational Plan;  

(b) Traffic Management Plan;  

(c) Security/Crowd Management Plan;  

(d) Noise Management Plan;  

(e) Risk Assessment(s);  

(f) Drugs Policy;   

P
age 114



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

- Noise Management Plan;  

- Risk Assessment(s);  

- Drugs Policy;   

- Medical Management Plan;  

- Youth and Vulnerable 

Persons Policy 

- Any other associated 

documentation.  

- A plan showing these 

temporary non-fixed 

structures will be created and 

circulated as part of the 

operational plan for each 

event. 

 

(g) Medical Management Plan;  

(h) Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy 

(i) Any other associated documentation.  

(j) A plan showing these temporary non-fixed structures will be created 

and circulated as part of the operational plan for each event. 

 

 Proposed new condition 

Requirements within all the documentation set out in Condition 1 will form 

additional conditions on this premises licence which will be observed and 

complied with. 

 Proposed new condition 

 

All documentation, monitoring procedures, registers and records required by the 

conditions of this licence must be kept for one year and made available at the 

premises upon request by any of the Responsible Authorities. 

Part M a)The prevention of crime and 

disorder 

 

 

2. That all staff will be given training in Retain Condition 

P
age 115



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

relation to the Licensing Act 2003 

and the following specific areas; 

Licensing Act 2003 objectives and 

awareness, management systems 

and processes to enforce the 

premises licence conditions, 

Challenge 25 and the responsible 

retail of alcohol, warning and 

eviction (guidelines and 

procedures), conflict management 

and maintaining all required records 

and registers.  

 

 

3. That the maximum capacity of the 

premises is 9,999 persons for all DJ 

/ music led nights and 9,999 patrons 

for all day time events and 

exhibitions.  

 
 

Retain Condition  

4. That clearly legible signage shall be 

prominently displayed where it can 

easily be seen and read by 

customers at all exits / entrances at 

the premises and in all external 

areas of the premises requesting to 

the effect that customers leave the 

premises in a quiet and orderly 

Reword to 
 
That clearly legible signage shall be prominently displayed where it can easily be 
seen and read by customers at all exits / entrances at the premises requesting 
that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner with respect for 
local residents.  
 

P
age 116



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

manner with respect for local 

residents.  

 

 

5. That a register will be maintained at 

the main entrance to the premises 

showing the names, addresses and 

up to date contact details including 

mobile phone contact numbers for 

the Licensee and other members of 

the management team who are on 

duty. 

 

 

Retain this condition 

6. That no alcohol will be brought in to 

the premises by any customers at 

any time.  

 

Retain this condition  

7. That any event held at the premises 

will be risk assessed and a suitable 

and sufficient number of male and 

female door supervisors will be 

employed at the premises in 

accordance with the risk 

assessment. A search policy will be 

implemented in line with the risk 

assessment.  

 
 

Amend condition   
 

There must be a minimum number of SIA door supervisors to the ratio of xx 
ration to be provided in agreement with the Police.  
 

8. The Venue Manager will only permit Retain this condition 

P
age 117



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

the sale of alcohol for consumption 

off the premises where the alcohol is 

a specialist product, e.g. wine sold 

as part of a food and drink festival or 

a gift in part of a corporate event. 

For events which are promotional 

events, sealed bottles of alcohol 

may be part of a gift for people 

attending the event and customers 

will be allowed to leave with those 

sealed containers. This will be 

enforced by security confiscating 

open vessels on exit points.   

 

9.The crowd management plan dealing 

with the dispersal and egress of guests will 

be in operation for every event held at the 

premise, details of this can be found in the 

operational plan. 

 

 

Remove as contained in condition 1 

 

10.That promotional literature and tickets 

will contain information regarding transport 

options and shall request that persons 

leave the area quietly.  

 

 

Remove – this takes place when non licensable activities are taking place; this is 
a good idea but should be in EMP as unenforceable. 
 

11.That SIA security staff and/or stewards 

to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons 

Retain this condition  

P
age 118



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

where necessary to leave the site quietly  

 

12.That any substantial queues formed 

within and outside the premises shall be 

supervised by event staff where 

appropriate. Such supervision shall be 

aimed at preventing disorder and 

discouraging anti-social behaviour.  

 

 

Remove as contained in condition 1 

 

13.All staff will receive licensing training in 

relation to the sale of alcohol, times and 

conditions of the premise prior to the 

premises opening. Training records will be 

kept on the premises. 

 

 

Reword to  

 

All relevant staff shall receive training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times 
and conditions of the premises licence. 
 

14.That a comprehensive incident book / 

incident recording system shall be kept at 

the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises:  

- Instances of anti-social or 

disorderly behaviour  

- Violence  

- Calls to the police or fire 

brigade  

- Abuse of staff and / or 

customers  

Reword to:  

The incident and event log shall be kept on the premises and completed on each 
occasion an incident or event as listed in a-g below occurs:  

 
(a) All crimes reported to the site;  
(b) All ejections of patrons;  
(c) Any complaints received;  
(d)  Any incidents of disorder;  
(e) Any faults in the CCTV system;  
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
(g) Any other incident or event that impacts upon the promotion of the 

Licensing Objectives within the Licensing Act 2003 

P
age 119



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

- Ejections of people from the 

premises  

- Visits to the premises by the 

local authority, police or fire 

brigade  

- Refused sales of alcohol  

- Any malfunction in respect of 

the CCTV system  

- Any other relevant incidents  

 

15. The incident book / incident 

recording system shall record the 

time, date, location and description 

of each incident, the printed and 

signed name of the person reporting 

the incident and any action taken in 

respect of the incident. The incident 

book / incident recording system 

shall be available / be accessible at 

the premises at all times that the 

premises are in use in accordance 

with this licence and shall be made 

available to officers of the council, 

police or fire brigade on request. 

 

 

Reword to: 

 

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location 
and description of each incident, the printed and signed name of the person 
reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of the incident.  
 

16.That a written record is kept of all staff 

authorised to sell alcohol; this staff record 

Reword to; 

 

P
age 120



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

is to contain the full name, home address, 

date of birth and national insurance 

number of each person so authorised. The 

staff record is to be kept on the licensed 

premises and made available for inspection 

by the Licensing Authority, Trading 

Standards or the Police as soon as 

reasonably practicable.  

 
.  

 

A written record shall be kept of all staff authorised to sell alcohol; this staff 

record is to contain their full name 

17.That SIA security staff and/or stewards 
to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons 
where necessary to leave the site quietly. 

 
 

Remove as contained in condition 1 

 

18.A digital CCTV system must be installed 
in the premises complying with the 
following criteria:  

- Cameras must be sited to observe 
customer entrance and exit doors 
both inside and outside, the bars 
and floor areas. 

- Where practical be capable of 
visually confirming the nature of the 
crime committed.  

- Provide a linked record of the date, 
time and place of any image.  

- Provide good quality images during 
opening times.  

- Have the recording device located in 

Reword to: 

A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the 
following criteria: 

(a) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both inside 
and outside, the alcohol displays and floor areas. 

(b) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and 
shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification.  

(c) Cameras viewing till areas must capture frames not less then 50% of 
screen.  

(d) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an 
overview of the premises.  

(e) Cameras must capture a minimum of 16 frames per second. 
(f) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed. 
(g) Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image. 
(h) Provide good quality images – colour during opening times. 

P
age 121



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

a secure area or locked cabinet.  
- Have a monitor to review images 

and recorded picture quality.  
- Be regularly maintained to ensure 

continuous quality of image capture 
and retention.  

- Have signage displayed in the 
customer area to advise that CCTV 
is in operation. 

- Digital images must be kept for 31 
days.  

- The police and authorised officers of 
the council will have access to 
images upon request 

- The equipment must have a suitable 
export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer 
so that the police or authorised 
officers of the council can make an 
evidential copy of the data when 
they require.  

- All cameras shall record constantly 
during all hours the premises are 
open to the public or to a section of 
the public permitted access for 
corporate or private events. 

- There must be a member of staff on 
site who can operate the CCTV 
when requested  

 

(i) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises. 
(j) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet. 
(k) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality. 
(l) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and 

retention. 
(m)Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in 

operation. 
(n) Digital images must be kept for 31 days. 
(o) Police will have access to images at any reasonable time. 
(p) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer 

so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they require. 
This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image 
quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-standard (i.e. 
manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay 
software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police 
or authorised officer of the Council on a standard computer. Copies must 
be made available to the Police or an authorised officer of the Council on 
request. 
 

19.That all information contained in the 
transport statement submitted to Enfield 
Council on application for this licence will 
be implemented by the premises licence 

Remove as contained in condition 1 & the TTO is a public document anyway  

 

P
age 122



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

holder. A copy of the transport statement 
shall be kept at the premises and be made 
available to council or police officers on 
request.  

 
 

20.For any event that runs past an 
operational time of 4:00am a last entry 
policy will be in place stopping guests from 
entering the venue past 1:00am. 

 

Retain this condition 

21.Licensable activities such as the sale of 
alcohol will cease one hour prior to the 
venue closing for events with a run-time to 
6:00am, allowing a one-hour wind down 
unless agreed in advance with the 
responsible authorities.  
 
 

. 
 

Do the police make any amendment to this ? 

 

 Add new condition: 
 
For non corporate music led events photo identification of all persons, including 
staff are passed through the system prior to being permitted entry to the 
premises. The details recorded on the system should be retained for at least 31 
days and made available to police upon reasonable request for the provision of 
preventing and detecting crime and identifying suspects and witnesses.  
 
Or similar as per any request from the Police 
 

 

  

Part M c) Public safety  

P
age 123



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 

22.That for each event an event overview 
shall be prepared and be made available 
for inspection by the responsible 
authorities. 

 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

23.That unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Licensing Authority, details of any 
proposed use and storage of lasers, 
special effects, fireworks or pyrotechnics 
shall be reflected in the Venue Operational 
Plan 

 
 

Remove as not licensable activity; dealt with by other H & S legislation. 
 

24.That a medical plan shall be devised in 
respect of the premises and a copy of the 
medical plan shall be available / be 
accessible at the premises at all times that 
the premises are in operation. The medical 
plan shall be made immediately available 
to council or police officers on request. 
First aid cover and facilities appropriate to 
any event must be provided in accordance 
with the medical plan.  

 
 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

25.That toilet facilities will be appropriately 
provided in accordance with each Venue 
Operational Plan, including the provision of 
external toilets if and when required.  

 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

 Add New Condition 
 

P
age 124



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

Defer to the Police for any additional condition regarding provision of Shuttle 
buses . 

 

Part M d) The prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

 

26.That a comprehensive Noise 
Management Plan shall be devised and 
reflected in the Venue Operation Plan in 
respect of the premises and a copy of the 
Noise Management Plan shall be 
accessible at the premises at all times that 
the premises are in operation. The Noise 
Management Plan shall be made 
immediately available to council or police 
officers on request. That the licensee will 
ensure that the premises Noise 
Management Plan is adhered to at all 
times.  

 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

27.That all relevant staff working at the 
premises shall be trained in the content of 
the Noise Management Plan and be aware 
of their responsibilities and duties under it. 
Records of relevant training shall be kept 
with the Noise Management Plan.  

 
 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

28.That the Noise Management Plan shall 
be reviewed whenever there is a significant 
change at the premises. For example, a 
significant change could include a new 
licensee, change to premises layout, a refit, 
a change to the type or style of licensed 

Remove as detailed in Condition 1 
 

P
age 125



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

entertainment etc.  
 

 

29.That a telephone number and/or email 
address should be made available on 
relevant websites for any noise complaints. 
Any noise complaints should be logged 
and investigated with written records of the 
details available to view by the Local 
Authority. Should any noise complaints be 
received, and if noise levels are above 
those specified in the licence conditions, 
action should be taken to reduce the levels 
at the noise source.  

 

Retain this condition 

30.That in the event of an emergency, 
music will cease and safety 
announcements will be relayed to 
attendees to a suitable non-powered back-
up system will be in place.   

 
 

Remove – its unenforceable & would be detailed in the EMP 
 

31.That patrons of the premises shall be 
provided with the details of preferred mini 
cab companies. 

 
 

Remove; its subjective & sits outside of licencing as would be part of marketing.  
 

32.That permitted sound levels shall be 
specified in the contract conditions with 
hirers of the premises to ensure sound 
levels are maintained within the limits in 
order to reduce the risk of disturbance. 
Further, during a function in the premises, 
sample noise measurements shall be 

Remove – Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

P
age 126



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

made by a designated person with an 
approved sound level meter to ensure that 
the levels are not being breached. 
Immediate action will be taken to reduce 
levels if this should arise. 

 
 

 Add new condition 
 

Any amplified sound arising from the Drumsheds shall not exceed 59dB LAeq 5 min and 68dB LCeq 5 

min measured 1 metre from the boundary of any residential property between the hours of 09:00 
– 23:00 and shall not exceed 52dB LAeq 5 min and 62dB LCeq 5 min measured 1 metre from the 
boundary of any residential property between the hours of 23:00 – 09:00. 

 

Part M e) The protection of children 
from harm 

 

33.That a challenge 25 scheme shall be 
maintained at the premises requiring that 
staff selling alcohol request that any 
customer who looks under 25 years old, 
and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 
provides valid photographic identification 
proving that the customer is at least 18 
years old. Full details will be contained in 
the youth and vulnerable person policy.  

 
 

Reword to be consisted with condition 39 on warehouse & Field licence 
 

 
That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that 
staff selling alcohol request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and 
who is attempting to purchase alcohol, provides valid photographic identification 
proving that the customer is at least 18 years old.  

 

34.Clearly legible signs shall be 
prominently displayed stating to the effect 
that a challenge 25 policy is in operation at 
the premises, that customers may be 
asked to provide proof of age and stating 
what the acceptable forms of proof of age 
are.  

Retain condition 

P
age 127



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 

35.That suitable records are kept of all 
refused sales of age restricted products.  

 
 

Reword to  
 
A record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed 
when necessary. 
 

36The operational procedure of all bars will 
adhere to the Venue Operational Plan. 

 
 

Remove as detailed in condition 1 
 

37.The Youth and Vulnerable persons 
policy agreed with the responsible 
authorities will be in operation at all events.  

 
 

Remove as detailed in condition 1 
 

 Add New Condition 

 
All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of 
the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the 
premises.  
 

 

 

Document ends 

 

 

 
 

Esther Hughes 
Team Leader – Consumer Protection 
Chair- Enfield SAG 

 

P
age 128



Drumsheds only 101419 v 6 18:30 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex 12 
 

IP8 – Resident C Representation 
 
 
I wish register my objections on two counts.  
Firstly the prevention of public nuisance due to the noise from the preposed venue 
being close to residential areas.  
Secondly on the grounds of public safety due to the the large amount of people 
spilling out of the preposed venue adjacent to a busy main road with very few 
transport links in the area.  
  
 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MERIDIAN WATER, UNIT 4-6B ORBITAL BUSINESS PARK, 5 ARGON ROAD, EDMONTON, N18 3BW  (REPORT NO.58)
	2. Annex 1 - Meridian Project Overview Update_
	3. Annex 2 - Local Area Maps
	4. Annex 3 - Application Form - Events
	5. Annex 4 - Plan with application
	6. Annex 5 - IP2 Police Rep
	7. Annex 6a - IP4 Fire Rep
	8. Annex 6b - IP4 Fire Guidance
	9. Annex 7 - IP1 Rep Resident A
	10. Annex 8a -  IP3 TH rep covering letter
	11. Annex 8b - IP3 TH APPENDIX 2
	12. Annex 8c - IP3 TH Appendix 3 to Representati
	13. Annex 9 - IP3 TH original rep 230119
	14. Annex 10 - IP5 Resident B Representation
	15. Annex 11 - IP6 SAG Representation
	16. Annex 12 - IP8 Resident C Representation




